
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Molalla City Council – Meeting Agenda   

Meeting located at: Molalla Adult Center   

315 Kennel Ave, Molalla, OR 97038 

August 9, 2017 – REVISED  

 

WORK SESSION BEFORE MEETING 6:30PM 

Business  meeting will begin at 7:00PM.  The Council has adopted Public Participation Rules. Public 

comment cards are available at the entry desk. Request to speak must be turned into to the Mayor prior to 

the start of the regular Council meeting. 

Executive Session : None  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 1,782nd Regular Meeting  

A. Call the meeting to order – Mayor Thompson 

B. Flag Salute and Roll Call 

 

2. COMMUNICATIONS, PRESENTATIONS & PUBLIC COMMENT 

A. Minutes: July 26, 2017 

B. Library Minutes – Informational Only 

 

3. CONTINUED BUSINESS  

4. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Utilities Rate Study Discussion and Presentation – Fisher/Donovan 

B. Street Maintenance Fee Discussion - Fisher 

C. Contract Award – PDG/Dyer Partnership for Wastewater Facility and Infrastructure Master Plan 

(16-10) – Fisher  

D. Contract Award – PDG/Dyer Partnership for TMDL Implementation Plan (17-14) – Fisher  

E. Contract Award - Waste Water Treatment Plant Headworks Rebuild – Fisher  

 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 

6. RESOLUTIONS  

A. Resolution 2017-11: A Resolution Initiating Street Vacation Proceedings for Shirley Street - Huff 

 

7. ORDINANCES 

 

8. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. Staff and Council Discussion – Huff 

1. Upcoming Meetings with Council Discussion for: 

 Visioning Project Process, Council Goal Setting and Continued Professional Training 

 Leauge of Oregon Cities Conference – Registrations need to be turned into Cramer 

this week to meet the deadlines.  

2. September 13, 2017 Meeting Reset to September 20, 2017 – Discussion/Approval 

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

10. ADJOURNMENT 

 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center 

315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, OR 97038 
Wednesday, July 26, 2017 

 

Page 1 of 6 
 

ATTENDANCE: Mayor Jimmy Thompson, Absent; Councilor Leota Childress, Present; Councilor Glen 
Boreth, Present; Councilor Elizabeth Klein, Present; Councilor Keith Swigart, Present; Councilor DeLise 
Palumbo, Present; Councilor Cindy Dragowsky, Absent.  
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE:  Dan Huff, City Manager, Present; Gerald Fisher, Public Works Director, 
Present; Chaunee Seifired, Present.  
 
COMMUNICATIONS, PRESENTATIONS & PUBLIC COMMENT 
Minutes – Boreth made the motion to approve the June 28, 2017. Swigart seconded. Motion carried 5-0. 

Susan Hansen of Bearcreek Recovery of Molalla read the following vierbetim:  

 

 

 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center 

315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, OR 97038 
Wednesday, July 26, 2017 

 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 

 

CONTINUED BUSINESS  

Drive To Zero Letter of Support was reviewed as presented in the packet. Palumbo made the motion to 
approve the letter and it be sent to the Drive To Zero Program. Swigart seconded. Motion carried 5-0.   

PUBLIC HEARING 

Boreth made the motion to exit out of regular session and enter into a public hearing for the Re-
designation of Molalla’s Enterprise Zone. Childress seconded. Motion carried 5-0. 

President Klein called for testimony for those opposed. Mike Towner, board President of the Molalla 
Rural Fire Protection District #73, stated the MRFD understands the benefits to the city and the 
community, but  is opposed to the re-designation because the adverse effect on the Fire District. The 
implementation of the Urban Renewal District and other service district that are requesting funding the 
enterprise zone can only add to the problem of an increase of service need without contributing finacially 
to the solution. It is for this reason the Molalla Fire District can not support the formation of any such 
zone or district.  

No testimony was received for infavor or neutral. Boreth made the motion to close the public hearing and 
enter into regular session. Swigart seconded. Motion carried 5-0.  

NEW BUSINESS 

Re-designation of Molalla’s Enterprise Zone – After the public hearing the Council addressed the re-
designation. Huff addressed Mr. Towners concerns regarding the MRFD. They are a very large district 
and anytime a new district is formed it does inpact them. If someone comes in and applies to build, the 
county could give them a break on taxes, which would impact both them and the city for a limited time 
between 3-5 years. Enterprise Zones are created to boost industry and jobs. Palumbo stated based on the 
documents it would be a minimal impact. Boreth stated most cities have enterprise zones and some cities 
offer huge incentives, such as Hillsboro. If we don’t do this and we don’t have an enterprise zone for 
potential builders to consider, they are more likely to go somewhere else. Klein asked that staff confirm 
the boundries of the enterprise zone map and that it corresponds with the current code. Boreth made the 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center 

315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, OR 97038 
Wednesday, July 26, 2017 

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

motion to reauthorize the City of Molalla Enterprise Zone with confirmation of the zones included on the 
map.  

REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Seifried reported that the 2016/2017 audit will begin next week and staff is still working on the utility 
billing audit and we received our first marijuana tax check from the state in the amount of $16,000. We 
do not know when the next disbursement will be or how much. It will go into a designated restricted 
police fund. The city budgeted for $100 because we did not know how much we would receive. We 
exceeded that budgeted amount.  

Fisher provided the following list of projects to the Council:  

 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center 

315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, OR 97038 
Wednesday, July 26, 2017 

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center 

315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, OR 97038 
Wednesday, July 26, 2017 

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

Transportation Advisory Committee Recruitment – Current recruitment is being done for this committee 
and it will be posted on the website and newspaper for volunteers. There will be 4 meetings over the year 
and ideally a committee of 8 to 10 people.  

Cramer reported there will be two street vacation processes coming before Council in August for 
initiation by resolution and wanted to let Council know ahead of time. Also, a $15,000 tourism grant was 
secured by the city for a new Native American Heritage Walk that will be worked on from now until the 
end of the year. Grand Ronde will be working with staff for accuracy, artistic input and other components 
of this project.  

Upcoming Meetings with Council Discussion for: 

 Council Goal Setting needs to be set. Huff asked each Councilor to send him dates.  
 Leauge of Oregon Cities Conference and Registration is Open  
 Solar Eclipse Event – Fox Park on August 21, 2017 at 8:30am flyers in the packet.  

Palumbo reported she is having discussion with the group trying to bring the Log Cabin back to Molalla 
and National Night Out is happening August 1st at Fox Park. She will be doing face painting at the event 
and invited everyone to attend.  

Boreth asked staff about the upcoming eclipse events that will taking place and how it will effect small 
cities. Huff stated we are currently working with the Rotary and Chamber regarding their event 
application. There are reports from Marion County and they are gearing up heavily. We could get the 
overflow from larger events and we have been working with the since June and our expectations of the 
events. There are a number of things to consider. Cramer stated that contact has been made with them and 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center 

315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, OR 97038 
Wednesday, July 26, 2017 

 

Page 6 of 6 
 

we should have the application by the end of the week. Fisher stated the street lights will come on and go 
off after the eclipse. The lights are all on photo cells which are out of the city’s control.  

Childress reported that Klein, Cramer and herself attended a Visioning session at the Ford Family 
Foundation which was informative. A timeline for our visioning process has been developed and will be 
given to the Council once it is solidifed. It will include listening session, incentives for completing 
survey’s and data collection as we launch to do the area wide survey distribution. Out of the session we 
attended it was discussed that perhaps we should add another questions to the survey. “What 3 skills are 
you willing to contribute to the project?” So as we move forward on the visioning we can do a data base 
as we move along and tap into those resources if we need a carpenter or other type of skill set. This 
process will go through June of 2018. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Councilor Boreth then motioned, seconded by Councilor Swigart to adjourn the meeting.  The motion 
passed unanimously.  The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:49pm. 

 

 

_____________________________   _________________________________ 
Sadie Cramer, City Recorder     Jimmy Thompson, Mayor 
 



Molalla Library Advisory Board 

Meeting Date: 6‐15‐2017 

Meeting brought to order by Kelly Andrews at 6:45 P.M. 

Members Present:  Mary Gilson, Angela Patton, Kelly Andrews, Valerie Coy 

City Council Liaison:  Cindy Dragowsky (excused) 

Staff present: Director Diana Hadley 

The minutes from the May meeting were approved as read.   

 Director’s Report: (See Diana if you didn’t receive one.) 

1)  Summer Reading is for all ages: children, teenagers, adults. 

2)  Community Cook Book. If you have a recipe you would like to share, you can submit it 

electronically. 

3) RFID: by August, self check‐out will be available. 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:23 P.M.  The next meeting will be held on July 20th at 6:45 P.M. 
 
Submitted by Mary Gilson, Secretary 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Background:  

This report is the end product of a 2 year project between staff and Donovan Enterprises, Inc 

(DEI). It began with a review of the City’s master plans and preparation of a Capital 

Improvement Plan that was adopted by Council on September 09, 2016. Staff then worked 

with DEI to prepare a system development charge (SDC) methodology update which was 

adopted by Council on December 14, 2016. The final step was for staff to prepare a near term 

(5 Year) capital improvement plan and DEI to prepare a Utilities Rate Study to look at rate 

structure needs for water, sewer, and stormwater. Additionally, the report looked at the 

unfunded (non‐SDC) portion of the transportation capital improvement plan. This report 

outlines the recommendation for utility rate increases and a possible new transportation 

capital improvement fee to complete identified City projects over the next 5 years. An 

overview presentation will be provided by DEI and both staff and DEI will be available to 

answer questions. 

City	Of	Molalla	
City	Council	Meeting	

 
	Agenda	Category:	New	Business	–	Report		

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Gerald Fisher, Public Works Director   
APPROVED BY:   Dan Huff, City Manager	 	 	 																																										

Subject:  2017 Utilities Rate Study 

Recommendation:   Council Review 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:   August 09, 2017

Fiscal Impact:  None 



 

 

 

Presented by: 

 

July 

2017 
Utilities Rate Study Final Report 

Prepared for: 

 

 
 
Donovan Enterprises, Inc. 
9600 SW Oak Street, Suite 335 
Tigard, Oregon  97223-6596 
 503.517.0671 
www.donovan-enterprises.com 

Printed on Recycled Paper 

http://www.donovan-enterprises.com/


 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Table of Contents 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Utilities Rate Study 
Table of Contents 

 
 

Executive Summary ....................................................................................................................................... 1 
Monthly User Fees .................................................................................................................................... 1 
Transportation Capital Projects Fee .......................................................................................................... 1 
Conclusions ............................................................................................................................................... 2 
Recommendations .................................................................................................................................... 4 

Analysis Section............................................................................................................................................. 5 
Background and Study Methodology........................................................................................................ 5 

Step 1:  Determination of Revenue Requirements ............................................................................... 6 
Step 2:  Allocate Revenue Requirements to Customer Classes ............................................................ 6 
Step 3:  Determine Rate Structure and Develop Rates ......................................................................... 7 

Analysis of Water System Revenue Requirements ................................................................................... 8 
Revenue Requirements Forecast & Results ........................................................................................ 12 
Analysis of Water Rates and Recommended Policy Changes ............................................................. 14 
Allocation of Revenue Requirements to Customer Classes (Cost of Service) .................................... 14 
Water Customer Profile ...................................................................................................................... 14 
Analysis of Water Demand ................................................................................................................. 15 
Existing and Projected Water Rates .................................................................................................... 15 
Rate Design Alternatives ..................................................................................................................... 16 

Analysis of Wastewater System Revenue Requirements ....................................................................... 17 
Revenue Requirements Forecast & Results ........................................................................................ 20 
Allocation of Revenue Requirements to Customer Classes (Cost of Service) .................................... 21 

Functional Cost Allocations ............................................................................................................. 22 
Allocations to Customer Classes ..................................................................................................... 23 
Determine Rate Structure and Develop Rates ................................................................................ 23 

Existing and Projected Wastewater Rates .......................................................................................... 23 
Treatment of Customers without Measurable Water Consumption ............................................. 24 
Residential Customers Charged Based on Winter Average Water Consumption .......................... 24 
Commercial Customers Charged Based on Assumed Strength of Discharge ................................. 25 

Rate Design Alternatives ..................................................................................................................... 25 
Analysis of Stormwater System Revenue Requirements ........................................................................ 27 

Revenue Requirements Forecast & Results ........................................................................................ 29 
Stormwater Rate Forecast – Eliminate Commercial Properties Cap Case.......................................... 30 

Transportation Capital Projects Fee Methodology ................................................................................. 31 
Rate Study Conclusions and Recommendations ..................................................................................... 33 

Conclusions ......................................................................................................................................... 33 
Recommendations .............................................................................................................................. 35 
Neighboring Communities’ Utility Rates............................................................................................. 35 

 

 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 1 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Executive Summary 

The City of Molalla is the sole provider of municipal utilities services to customers within the urban 
services boundary of the City.  Revenues required to fund the delivery of these urban services are obtained 
from monthly user fees which are set by the City Council via its City charter authority.  This study addresses 
two things; first, the revenue required from rates needed to support future operations and maintenance 
costs for the water, wastewater, and stormwater utilities along with a funding plan for capital needs 
identified in the City’s capital improvement plans.  Second, this study formulated a strategy for 
implementing a transportation capital projects fee.  If implemented by the City Council, future revenues 
derived from this monthly user fee would be dedicated to fund streets and other transportation capital 
improvement projects 

Monthly User Fees 

With the active involvement of City staff, twenty year planning models were developed for this project; 
however, the focus for the rate study is the five year near-term forecast of fiscal 2017-18 through fiscal 
2022-23.  These financial models have been reviewed with the City as they were developed and will be 
provided to Molalla as a project deliverable enabling the City to make future updates. 

The purpose of this study is to develop a cost of service-based methodology that will accurately determine 
the cost the city incurs to deliver municipal utilities services.  The models developed for this project have 
been populated with adopted fiscal 2017-18 budgeted revenues and costs, estimated results for fiscal 
2017, along with actuals for fiscal 2015 through 2016.  During this study, the project team presented 
multiple rate scenarios to the City Staff for their consideration.  These model runs simulated the current 
service levels (CSL) of the utilities, and sensitivity cases for a number of funding issues facing the City’s 
utilities.  The results of each model run were expressed in terms of the rate impacts on the average single 
family residential customer’s monthly bill for each utility service.  Over the near-term five year forecast 
horizon, we are projecting average annual increases is system revenue requirements as follows: 

 Water .................................................................................. 2.86% per year 

 Wastewater ......................................................................... 6.09% per year 

 Stormwater ......................................................................... 3.50% per year 

Transportation Capital Projects Fee 

In 2016, the City reviewed its system development charge (SDC) methodology and schedule of charges for 
transportation SDCs.  As part of that study, the City concluded it was facing a transportation funding gap.  
Over the next ten years, there was an identified need of $21.7 million for transportation capital 
improvement projects.  Out of this total needs assessment, the City estimated $15.0 million could legally 
be funded from SDCs (i.e., growth).  This left a funding gap of $6.7 million.  The only dedicated funding 
sources available to fund this gap are motor fuel taxes and PGE franchise fees.  It is estimated that roughly 
90% of these resources are dedicated to street maintenance and not capital projects funding.  For fiscal 
2017-18, the total budgeted receipts from these two sources is $694,000.  Assuming only ten percent of 
this total could be dedicated to capital projects funding, that amounts to $69,400 per year. 

City Staff and the rate study project team were tasked with identifying a new dedicated funding source 
that could fund the projected $6.7 million.  This effort resulted in the formulation of a monthly fee that 
would be added to all active water customers’ bills within the City.  Our analysis of fiscal 2017-18 budget 
and utility billing data indicate this transportation capital projects fee could be in the range of $12.29 - 
$18.28 per active account per month.  The low end of the range assumes the City borrows (bonds) the 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 2 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

total revenue requirement of the program, and pledges the monthly rate revenues to pay the future debt 
service on the bonds.  The high end of the range assumes a pay as you go strategy.  A complete discussion 
of the rate making methodology for both scenarios is contained in the body of this report. 

Conclusions 

The schedules of utility rates and the proposed transportation capital projects fee shown above were 
developed through consultation with City staff and the members of the rate study project team.  The 
study process included an evaluation of revenue requirements, cost of service, and rate design for the five 
year forecast (fiscal 2019 through fiscal 2023).  The revenue requirements analysis determined the 
amount of annual revenue needed to be generated by rates.  This analysis addressed the level, rather 
than the structure of rates. 

A number of specific conclusions and policy recommendations were developed through this collaboration, 
and are briefly discussed in this executive summary.  Itemized below is a listing of these conclusions and 
recommendations. 

 On balance, the City’s utilities are in good financial condition.  Fund balances exceed minimum 
operating reserve requirements for water and stormwater.  However, the projected ending fund 
balance in the wastewater fund on June 30, 2018 does not meet a minimum reserve requirement of 
60 days of operating expenses, and will have to be rectified via future general rate increases.  Revenue 
bond debt service coverage on water and wastewater debt exceeds covenants. 

 Over the next five years (including the fiscal year that just started on July 1, 2017), the water utility 
has planned capital improvements that total $6.9 million (adjusted for inflation).  In order to keep rate 
increases manageable, our modeling indicates the City will have to borrow approximately $3.8 million 
over this time frame (before issuance costs and debt service reserves funding).  The balance of the 
water system capital costs will be funded from SDCs ($2.1 million), and cash contributions from rates 
($1.0 million).  By the end of fiscal 2021-22, we are forecasting total principal and interest payments 
on this new water system debt to be $263,207 per year (assuming 20 year senior lien revenue bonds).  
Fortunately, the current water system legacy debt, the Series 2010 Water Refunding Revenue Bonds 
will by retied in fiscal 2017-18 freeing up $350,000 per year in free cash flow.  By the end of this five 
year forecast period, we estimate the water SDC fund will have an ending fund balance of $82k and 
the water operating fund will have and ending fund balance of $350k.  This can be accomplished with 
average annual rate increases of 2.86% per year, and will be sufficient to meet system financial needs. 

 The wastewater utility is facing some financial challenges.  First, the utility has $3.8 million in principal 
outstanding on long term debt as of June 30, 2017.  This legacy debt consists of the 2010 sewer 
refunding bonds and the 2008 Clean Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan.  These debts will not be 
retired until 2025 for the bonds, and 2028 for the loan.  The total annual debt service on these two 
debt instruments is $502k per year.  Second, over the next five years, the wastewater utility is planning 
on spending $7.1 million (adjusted for inflation) on capital improvements.  In order to manage future 
rate spikes resulting from this spend, our modeling indicates the City will have to bond a significant 
portion of the future capital projects costs.  Out of the $7.1 million need, we conclude the City will 
have to borrow $6.0 million (before issuance costs and debt service reserves funding).  Even though 
most of the total is SDC eligible, the City will only be able to contribute $846k in SDCs over the forecast 
horizon.  This is due to low wastewater SDC fund balance and the City policy of using SDCs to pay the 
annual principal component of the SRF loan debt service.  Finally, based on the adopted fiscal 2017-
18 wastewater system budget, the City is projected to end the year with an operating reserve of $215k 
(i.e., Wastewater Fund ending fund balance).  This reserve represents 35 days of wastewater system 
operating expenses, and is well below our recommended reserve level of 60 days of operating 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 3 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

expenses.  In order to correct this deficiency, we have gradually increased rates over the five year 
forecast horizon to bring the wastewater fund balance up to 60 days of operating expenses by June 
30, 2022.  Our modeling indicates that all of these system requirements can be funded with average 
annual rate increases of 6.09% per year.  By the end of the five year forecast horizon, we project the 
wastewater SDC fund will have and ending fund balance of $129k, and the wastewater operating fund 
will have a corresponding cash balance of $440k. 

 The stormwater utility has a revenue recovery problem, and the City Council is aware of this problem.  
In 1999, the City adopted a stormwater fee methodology to provide a mechanism that would generate 
revenue for the maintenance and operation of the stormwater collection and detention system.  That 
fee methodology used impervious area (IA) as the basis for charging customers.  Initially, the City 
assumed single family residential customers contributed 2,640 square feet of IA per home.  This 
became the basis for the Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU).  The plan then called for the City to measure 
the IA from all commercial, industrial, and institutional customers (via GIS data) to calculate their fees.  
The measured IA for each of these non-single family residential customers would be divided by 2,640 
to calculate the number of EDUs they contributed to the system and then be billed at the rate of $2.00 
per EDU.  Unfortunately, at the time of implementation, the City chose to “cap” the total number of 
EDUs that any non-single family residential customer would be charged at 20 EDUs.  This policy has 
resulted in an under recovery of revenues required to fund the operations and maintenance of the 
stormwater systems.  During the fiscal 2017-18 budget process, the City Council was apprised of this 
commercial cap policy, and they have decided to discontinue the policy and they have directed Staff 
to bill the non-single family residential accounts based on their actual measured IA.  As part of this 
process, Public Works staff have remeasured all parcels in the City (via geographical information 
system (GIS) data) and have recalibrated the EDU to 2,980 square feet of IA.  We have assumed this 
will be the case, and have recommended the City set the current monthly rate per EDU at $3.60.  If 
the cap policy had been continued, the calculated rate would have been $4.51 per EDU. 

 The methodology that we are proposing for the construction of a transportation capital projects fee 
is based on generally accepted rate making practice, and has been reviewed by City Staff.  We believe 
the City is justified in implementing this fee because there is no other dedicated funding source that 
we could find to meet the need.  There are two options for the construction of the fee, as discussed 
in the opening remarks of this report.  If the City bonds the entire capital projects revenue 
requirement, the monthly fee comes to $12.15 per active utility account per month.  If the City 
chooses to follow a pay as you go strategy, the fee comes to $18.08 per active utility account per 
month. 

 

  



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 4 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Recommendations 

The recommendations of this municipal utilities rates study are pragmatic and reasonable.  Our 
recommendations are focused on securing the financial future of the utilities and to make sure that all 
customers who receive the benefits of utilities services pay their proportionate share of the costs of 
delivering those utility services.  Itemized in Table 1 are the key recommendations for each utility over 
the next five years: 

Table 1 – Summary of the 2017 Utilities Rate Study Recommendations 

2017 Utilities Rate Study Recommendations 
• No rate increases are required for the current fiscal year 2017-18.  However, beginning on July 1, 

2018, we recommend the City adjust utility rates by an average annual percentage increase 
through June 30, 2023 as follows: 

 

 Water - 2.86% per year for each year of the five year forecast 
 

 Wastewater – 6.09% per year for each year of the five year forecast 
 

 Stormwater – 3.5% per year for each year of the five year forecast 

• Follow through with the elimination of the current stormwater fee “capping” policy for non-
single family residential properties.  The primary purpose of the stormwater utility is to keep City 
streets clear of standing stormwater, eliminate localized flooding throughout the City, and 
enhance water quality in the receiving streams.  Exemptions only hamper the City from 
completing this mission. 

• Present the proposed methodology for implementing a monthly transportation capital projects 
fee to the Molalla City Council via work session.  Offer both of the funding options (i.e., bonding 
of the revenue requirement and the pay as you go strategy), and get feedback from the Council.  
If the Council chooses to proceed with one of the options, develop a customer outreach and 
education plan for rolling out the fee.  Consider a target implementation date of July 1, 2018. 

• Continually monitor the cash positon of the wastewater fund.  If the fund balance falls below 30 
days of operating expenses in this fiscal year (FY 2017-18), consider implementing cost controls 
and or an interim rate increase to bring the fund balance up.  Our proposed future wastewater 
rate increases are programmed to build the fund balance to an acceptable reserve level of 60 
days of operating expenses over five years. 

 

 

 

 

  



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 5 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Analysis Section  

Background and Study Methodology 

Molalla is a residential community located near the Molalla River in Clackamas County.  It is positioned 14 
miles south of Oregon City on Highway 213, and 25 miles northeast of Salem.  The City owns and operates 
a culinary water system that serves 2,750 customers and provided about 42.2 million cubic feet of water 
to customers in fiscal 2015-16.  Out of the 2,750 active accounts, 94% are residential/small commercial 
customers.  The balance of the accounts are larger multifamily, institutional, and industrial customers. 

The City also owns and operates a wastewater collection and treatment system.  The wastewater 
treatment plant was constructed in 1980. The plant has a headworks, which includes comminution 
(grinding) and flow measurement using a Parshall flume. Influent flows by gravity from the headworks to 
an aeration basin. A pump station is required to transfer the wastewater from the aeration basin to the 
first of two facultative lagoons, which provide both treatment and storage. Disinfection is accomplished 
using aqueous chlorine. Dry-weather effluent is disposed of by land application on the plant site and on 
lands in private ownership. Excess dry weather effluent is stored in the lagoons. Wet-weather flows and 
stored effluent are further treated using dissolved air flotation (DAF) and gravity filters prior to a stage-
based surface water discharge to the Molalla River.  The collection system has approximately 100,000 feet 
of piping and over 250 manholes. Most of the system was installed after 1955 and uses piping made of 
concrete, asbestos cement (AC) or polyvinyl chloride (PVC). The 3,700 feet of pre-1955 sewer lines are 
open-jointed concrete pipe. Much of the system drains to the north and then follows Toliver Road west 
to the treatment plant. A trunk installed in the south end of the City diverts some of the flows along 
Highway 211 and Bear Creek to the plant. There are also five small collection system pump stations. 

Finally, the City owns and operates a storm drainage system that consists of 27.7 miles of storm drainage 
lines ranging in size from 6-inch diameter to 72-inch diameter, 1,553 storm structures (catch basins, 
manholes, cleanouts, storm inlets and outfalls), 13 stormwater detention basins, and 0.73 miles of 
culverts ranging in size from 6-inch diameter to 72” diameter.  The City does not own or operate any 
stormwater pump stations.  Stormwater runoff in the City flows directly to one of three natural systems: 
the Molalla River, Bear Creek or Creamery Creek. Two branches of Creamery Creek flow through the north 
end of the City, generally from southeast to northwest, and meet east of Highway 213; Creamery Creek 
flows into the Molalla River several miles outside the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). Bear Creek runs 
generally parallel to and south of Creamery Creek and eventually flows into the Pudding River. The 
Pudding River flows into the Molalla River just before the Molalla River enters the Willamette River. 

To pay for the operation, maintenance, replacement, and improvement of these water, wastewater, and 
stormwater systems, the City charges its customers fees on a monthly basis.  The purpose of this study is 
to evaluate the City’s methodology for calculating these fees and to perform an industry standard, cost of 
service analysis (COSA).  The process used to prepare the COSA for the City’s utilities follows standard 
ratemaking principles, as outlined by the American Water Works Association (AWWA), the Water 
Environment Federation (WEF), and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  This process 
consists of three steps: 

1. Determine revenue requirements…(how much does it cost to provide service system-wide) 

2. Allocate costs to customer classes…(who is causing the need for the service, and in what 
proportion) 

3. Determine rate structure and develop rates…(align rates to recover costs from those causing the 
need) 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 6 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Step 1:  Determination of Revenue Requirements 

Revenue requirements are the total costs of providing services to utility customers over a specific period 
of time (usually one year). These costs include operation and maintenance (O&M) and capital costs. O&M 
costs are the routine costs of operating and maintaining a utility system in order to provide service. For 
the purpose of rate setting, revenue requirements are projected from budgeted expenses, and adjusted 
based on historical cost trends and the expertise of utility staff. Examples of O&M costs are chemicals and 
electricity used at plants, skilled plant operator labor, and administrative expenses. 

Capital costs, as defined for the City’s rates structures, are the resources used to acquire or construct 
capital assets. These include current revenue funded (pay-as-you-go) improvements, planned annual 
contributions to funds for such purposes, and ongoing debt service requirements (principal and interest 
payments on outstanding loans and other obligations). Capital assets are defined as major assets that 
benefit more than a single fiscal period. Typical examples are land, improvements to land, easements, 
buildings, improvements, vehicles, machinery, equipment and other infrastructure. Capital costs are 
projected for the rate-setting period based on the capital improvement plan, the City’s bond covenants 
and utility staff expertise. 

To determine the amount of revenue that rates must generate annually, the total revenue requirements 
are reduced by nonrate or other system revenues.  Examples of other system revenues are unrestricted 
interest earnings, revenues from wholesale contract customers, and revenue from miscellaneous charges. 
Total requirements less other system revenues equal requirements from rates. 

Step 2:  Allocate Revenue Requirements to Customer Classes 

Determination of the costs-of-service by customer class is a four-step process. These steps are referred 
to as functionalization, joint and specific groupings, classification, and allocation. Functionalization 
involves categorizing revenue requirements according to utility functions. For example, wastewater 
functions typically include treatment (often broken up by unit process), collection, pumping, and 
customer service. Utilities incur varying levels of costs to perform the different system functions needed 
to meet customer demands. Therefore, the first step in the cost allocation process is to determine what 
it costs the utility to perform different service functions.  Next, functional costs are grouped by joint and 
specific categories.  This process allows for certain types of costs (e.g., industrial pretreatment costs) to 
be allocated directly to benefiting customers.  The majority of costs are generally joint or common to all 
customers. 

Following functionalization and joint and specific groupings, a classification process is undertaken. A 
fundamental objective in developing a rate system is to price utility services so that each customer pays 
for the service they receive in proportion to their use. Some costs incurred by the utilities are a function 
of quantity.  In the case of water, is means metered water sales.  In the case of wastewater, it means the 
amount of wastewater discharged to the collection system. Other costs are associated with serving 
customers regardless of the quantity that flows through the system. 

Ideally, each customer would be charged according to the actual cost of providing service to his or her 
connection. However, it is impractical to estimate the cost of serving each individual customer. Therefore, 
it is accepted practice in the utility industry to classify customers into relatively few, reasonably 
homogeneous groups, and then to develop rates for each group. In the final step of the cost allocation 
process, the characteristics of the utilities’ customers are analyzed and costs are allocated to each class. 
For water systems, user characteristics include number of meters, base daily demand, and extra capacity 
demand measured in maximum day and maximum month demand.  For wastewater systems, user 
characteristics include sewage flows, strengths and the number of customer accounts. 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 7 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

The user characteristics serve as the basis for allocating costs by service characteristic to each customer 
class.  The sum of each class’s proportionate cost share of each service characteristic is that class’s total 
cost-of-service. 

Step 3:  Determine Rate Structure and Develop Rates 

The last step in the rate development process is the design of the rate structure and the development of 
rates. There are a variety of rate structure options available to meet a wide range of policy objectives. 
Molalla water and wastewater rates are comprised of a fixed charge per customer per billing period 
(monthly) and a volume charge that varies based on water usage or estimated sewage flow.  Stormwater 
fees are flat rated for residential customers at an assumed amount of impervious surface equal to 2,984 
square feet.  Commercial, institutional, and industrial customers are billed based on actual measured 
impervious surface. 

Once a rate structure is selected, rates are calculated based on the costs-of-service by class determined 
in Step 2.  The end result of this rate development process is an equitable distribution of system revenue 
requirements to system users. 

  



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 8 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Analysis of Water System Revenue Requirements 

This analytical task determines the amount of revenue needed from water rates. This is driven by utility 
cash flow or income requirements, constraints of bond covenants, and specific fiscal policies related to 
the water utility.  Based on two years of actual financial records (i.e., fiscal 2015 through 2016), estimated 
results for fiscal 2017, and for the upcoming budget year 2018, a base case analysis was developed.  This 
case is predicated on a number of planning assumptions.  These planning assumptions are discussed in 
detail below. 

For the upcoming budget year (fiscal 2018), it is forecasted that the water utility will generate sufficient 
revenues from rates, charges and fees to meet its obligations and produce an unappropriated ending 
balance in the water operating fund of $365,499.  The beginning balance for the water operating fund in 
this same fiscal year is estimated to be $774,043.  In order to establish and maintain cash balances in the 
water operating fund while continuing to support the funding of future operations and maintenance work, 
average annual general water rate increases of 2.86% per year will be required for each of the ensuing 
five fiscal years starting on July 1, 2018 (i.e., the start of fiscal 2018-19). 

For the forecast of revenue requirements, the following assumptions were made based on discussions 
with City staff: 

Inflation in costs and growth in the customer base – In order to accurately reflect likely future conditions, 
the revenue requirements model was programmed to allow for inflation and cost escalation factors by 
budget line item.  Per guidance from City staff, the following factors were applied for estimating future 
cost escalation: 

 All direct labor line items – 3.0% per year 

 Pension plan contributions (City cost) – 8.0% per year 

 Health insurance premiums (City cost) – 6.0% per year 

 Professional services (OMI contract) – 3.0% per year 

 All other operating expense line items – 3.0% per year 

 The growth forecast expressed in the annual increase in 3/4” meters is estimated to be 1.0% per 
year over the five (5) year forecast horizon. 

Capital Improvement Plan Funding - In the upcoming budget year 2018, total water system capital 
improvement costs are estimated to be $1,528,000, and consist of the following projects: 

Project Description Cost 

Metzler, 3rd, and Faurie street improvements $349,000 

Lola Avenue improvements 318,000 

City Shops improvements 137,000 

WTP – New Trident 1,400 GPM filter unit 445,200 

WTP – Sodium hypochlorite & controls unit 243,800 

WTP – Security fencing     35,000 

 Total $1,528,000 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 9 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

 

With the assistance of City Staff, a 20 year water system capital improvement plan was developed for this 
rate study effort.  Over this 20 year horizon, the City’s water system capital improvement plan calls for 
the investment of $15,908,932 (2016 dollars).  For the purposes of this rate study, the project team 
focused on the funding strategy for the first five (5) years of the Plan.  The first five years of investments 
amounts to $6,968,581 (adjusted for inflation), and is also shown graphically in Figure 1.  The water system 
financial plan calls for all of these costs to be funded from a combination of long term debt proceeds, 
SDCs, and internally generated cash flow.  

 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 10 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Figure 1 - Forecast of Water Capital Expenditures 

 

As discussed above, under this water system financial plan, it is assumed that all of the capital improvement costs are to be funded from a mix of 
new debt, water SDCs, and free cash flow generated in the water operating fund.  The water CIP funding plan is shown below in Table 2. 

 

$1,528,000 

$2,349,596 

$874,498 $860,371 

$1,356,117 

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

$4,000,000

$4,500,000

$5,000,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Water Treatment Transmission and Distribution Operation, Maintenance, and Replacement Projects



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 11 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

 

Table 2 - Forecast of Future Water System Capital Financing Plan 

 

It should be noted, the City is budgeting for total water rate revenues of $1,550,000 for fiscal 2017-18.  
This level of ongoing cash flow in combination with future debt proceeds, fund balances in the water SDC 
and operating funds is sufficient to make the water capital funding plan work. 

Operating Costs in Excess of Inflation – In most rate studies, there are certain operating cost categories 
that tend to grow in excess of the general price index.  We have not identified any categories in this 
analysis.  Also, we have not planned or budgeted for any additional labor.  If the water utility does add 
staff, these costs will impact the current revenue requirements forecast. 

Modeling for Contingencies, Reserves, and Ending Fund Balances - The financial engine of the water utility 
is the water operating fund.  Because the utility cash finances all of its operations, the ending fund balance 
in the water operating fund is in effect the contingency fund for the utility.  Over the past three years, the 
ending fund balance in the Water Operating Fund has been stable, primarily due to steady growth in rate 
revenue receipts, and expense controls initiated by City management.  For planning purposes, we are 
expecting the Water Operating Fund will end all forecast years with a target ending fund balance in excess 
of sixty days of operating expenses.  This target balance gives the water utility enough contingency to fund 
unforeseen operating cost spikes.  The five year forecast of targeted Water Operating Fund balances and 
operating reserve requirements is shown below in Figure 2. 

 

Capital Improvements Financing 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Capital Costs to be Funded 1,528,000$  2,349,596$  874,498$     860,371$     1,356,117$  
less: Contributions from SDCs 855,200       998,664       84,347         78,559         80,071         
less:  Contributions From Construction Fund bal (0)                  -                -                -                -                
less: Contributions From Utility Rates 672,800       100,000       100,000       100,000       100,000       
less: Developer Contributions -                -                -                -                -                

Amount to be Financed -                1,250,933    690,151       681,812       1,176,046    
Long-term Borrowing:
  Revenue Bonds:

Amount Borrowed -                1,351,114    745,422       736,415       1,270,230    
less: Financing Cost -                13,511         7,454            7,364            12,702         
less: Reserve Funding -                86,670         47,817         47,239         81,482         
less: Refunding of BANs -                -                -                -                -                

Net Funds from Revenue Bonds -                1,250,933    690,151       681,812       1,176,046    
New Annual Debt Service:

Debt Service -$              86,670$       134,487$     181,726$     263,207$     



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 12 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Figure 2 - Forecast of Water Operating Fund Balances and Operating Reserve Requirements 

 

 

Revenue Requirements Forecast & Results 

All of the above cost elements are contained in the revenue requirements model which is the platform 
for the “base case” forecast.  The base case assumes the utility will fund the capital improvements strategy 
(discussed above).  Also, the utility would fund the operating costs as adjusted for inflation.  This base 
case resulted in the following forecast of water system revenue requirements (Table 3).   

 

766 

365 

445 475 455 

350 

235 

313 

240 255 270 291 

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

$700

$800

$900

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

s

Total Ending Fund Balance 60 days' operating expenses



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 13 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Table 3 – Base Case Forecast of Water System Revenue Requirements 

 

 

Table 3 shows, forecasted annual changes in water system revenue requirements average 2.86% per year 
from fiscal 2018-19 through fiscal 2022-23.  On July 1, 2017, the City enacted a 2.1% general rate increase 
that is accounted for in the budget year 2017-18 budgeted rate revenues. 

  

Budget Forecast
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Projection of Cash Flow:
Revenues:

Total licenses and permits -                -                -                -                -                -                
Total Service Charges 1,550,000     1,550,000     1,593,581     1,636,558     1,681,144     1,727,245     
Total interest earned -                2,924            3,564            3,804            3,644            2,804            
Total other financing sources -                -                -                -                -                -                
Total miscellaneous income 10,000          10,300          10,609          10,927          11,255          11,593          

Subtotal gross operating revenues 1,560,000     1,563,224     1,607,754     1,651,289     1,696,043     1,741,641     
Operations & Maintenance Expense:

Total personal services 561,365        583,725        607,141        631,674        657,386        684,345        
Total materials and services 566,650        583,650        601,159        619,194        637,770        656,903        
Total capital outlay 65,729          67,701          69,732          71,824          73,979          76,198          
Transfers to other funds 102,000        191,730        242,699        293,184        378,009        381,453        

Total operations and maintenance expense 1,295,744     1,426,805     1,520,731     1,615,876     1,747,144     1,798,899     

(Use)/replacement of fund balance (408,544)       180,000        130,000        80,000          (5,000)           

Net Cash 672,800        (43,581)         (42,977)         (44,587)         (46,100)         (57,257)         

Net Deficiency/(Surplus) (672,800)       43,581          42,977          44,587          46,100          57,257          

Test of Coverage Requirement:
Gross Revenues:

Operating revenues 1,560,000     1,563,224     1,607,754     1,651,289     1,696,043     1,741,641     
System Development Charges 74,860          76,357          77,884          79,442          81,031          82,651          

Total Gross Revenues 1,634,860     1,639,581     1,685,639     1,730,731     1,777,074     1,824,293     
Operating Expenses:

Total personal services 561,365        583,725        607,141        631,674        657,386        684,345        
Total materials and services 566,650        583,650        601,159        619,194        637,770        656,903        
Transfers to other funds 102,000        105,060        108,212        111,458        114,802        118,246        
Transfers to/(from) the rate stabilization account (18,668)         -                -                -                -                -                

Total Operating Expenses 1,211,347     1,272,434     1,316,512     1,362,326     1,409,958     1,459,493     

Net Revenues 423,513        367,147        369,126        368,405        367,117        364,799        

Debt Service 350,200        86,670          134,487        181,726        263,207        263,207        

Coverage Recognized 1.21              4.24              2.74              2.03              1.39              1.39              
Coverage Required 1.20              1.20              1.20              1.20              1.20              1.20              

Net Deficiency/(Surplus) (3,273)           (263,143)       (207,742)       (150,334)       (51,268)         (48,951)         

Projection of Revenue Sufficiency and Forecasted Rates:
Maximum Deficiency -                43,581          42,977          44,587          46,100          57,257          
Percent Increase Required Over Current Rate Revenues 0.00% 2.81% 2.70% 2.72% 2.74% 3.31%
Five Year Average Increase in Revenue Requirements 2.86% 2.86% 2.86% 2.86% 2.86%
Revenues Recovered From Existing Rates and Charges: 1,550,000     1,550,000     1,593,581     1,636,558     1,681,144     1,727,245     
add:  Revenues Recovered From Rate Increase -                43,581          42,977          44,587          46,100          57,257          

Total Revenues Recovered From Rates & Charges after Increase 1,550,000     1,593,581     1,636,558     1,681,144     1,727,245     1,784,502     



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 14 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Analysis of Water Rates and Recommended Policy Changes 

Allocation of Revenue Requirements to Customer Classes (Cost of Service) 

The ratemaking methodology that was used to allocate water system revenue requirements is called the 
“base-extra capacity method”, and is consistent with industry standards in water rate making.  The City 
has been using this method at least since 2007.  Under this methodology, costs of service are separated 
into three primary cost components: (1) base costs, (2) extra capacity costs, and, (3) customer costs. 

Base costs are those that tend to vary with the total quantity of water used plus those operations and 
maintenance (O&M) expenses and capital costs associated with service to customers under average load 
conditions, without the elements of cost incurred to meet water use variations and resulting peaks in 
demand.  Base costs include O&M expenses of supply, treatment, pumping, and distribution facilities.  
Base costs also include capital costs related to water plant investment associated with serving customers 
to the extent required for a constant, or average, annual rate of demand/usage. 

Extra capacity costs are those associated with meeting rate of use requirements in excess of average and 
include O&M expenses and capital costs for system capacity beyond that required for average rate of use.  
These costs have been subdivided into costs necessary to meet maximum-day extra demand, and 
maximum-hour demand in excess of maximum day demand. 

Customer costs comprise those costs associated with serving customers, irrespective of the amount or 
rate of water use.  They include meter reading, billing, and customer accounting and collection expense, 
as well as maintenance and capital costs related to meters and services. 

Water Customer Profile 

The City’s water utility served 2,750 active water accounts in fiscal 2015-16.  At any given time, this 
number fluctuates due to move-in, and move-outs.  Out of this total, 2,700 accounts were inside the City 
limits, and 50 were outside.  From a demand perspective, 97% of all customers were single family 
residential or small commercial accounts, and are served by ¾” water meters.  The breakdown of water 
meters in service as of June 30, 2016 are shown below in Table 4. 

 

Table 4 - Water Meters in Service as of June 30, 2016 

 

Meter Size

⅝ inch ¾ inch 1 inch 1 ½ inch 2 inch 3 inch 4 inch Total

Inside City:

Residential -            2,508        12              6                3                -            -            2,529        

Multifamily -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Commercial -            111           10              24              11              -            -            156           

Industrial -          -          -          -          -          12           3             15           

Subtotal inside city -            2,619        22              30              14              12              3                2,700        

Outside City:

Residential -            41              -            -            2                -            -            43              

Multifamily -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Commercial -          4             -          -          3             -          -          7             

Industrial -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          

Subtotal outside City -            45              -            -            5                -            -            50              

System Total -          2,664      22           30           19           12           3             2,750      



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 15 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Analysis of Water Demand 

An analysis of actual water sales in fiscal 2015-16 was undertaken to understand overall system demands, 
and to specifically identify who is buying water and when they buy that water.  In fiscal 2015-16, 77% of 
all water was sold to the single family residential customer class.  The balance, 23% was sold to 
commercial, master metered multi-family, industrial, and institutional customers.  From a peak day 
demand perspective, the residential class had a peak day factor (i.e., peak day demand divided by average 
day demand) 1.87 compared to a peak day factor for the commercial/industrial class of 1.69.  Intuitively, 
this makes sense since peaking demand for water occurs in the hot summer months when irrigation 
demand is at its highest.  The largest users of irrigation water in the City are single family residential 
customers.  The water sales data for fiscal 2015-16 is contained in Table 5. 

 

Table 5 - Molalla Water Sales Volumes in Fiscal 2015-16 

 

 

Existing and Projected Water Rates 

The City’s current water rate structure was last reviewed in 2010.  A number of rate increases have been 
implemented by the Council since that time, but the basic water rate methodology has remained intact.  
Billings for customers include two components: a fixed rate (demand charge) and a volume rate 
(commodity charge). The two components are added together to compute an invoice for each customer.  
The fixed rates are based on costs associated with maintaining/reading meters and the costs associated 
with billing and are charged per connection to the water system.  Volume rates are based on the customer 
class for each 100 cubic feet (ccf) of water.  The last rate adjustments were made by the City Council via 
Resolution no. 2016-08 (dated May 25, 2016) with an implementation date of July 1, 2017.  The current 
and projected schedule of water rates and charges is shown below in Table 4. 

Commercial/Industrial Residential

Classification Total  CF Inside CF Outside CF Total  CF Inside CF Outside CF Bulk CF Total CF

July-15 1,019,929      990,159          29,770            4,109,614      4,045,478      64,136            4,509               5,134,052      

August-15 1,379,871      1,360,013      19,858            5,121,849      5,044,476      77,373            4,859               6,506,579      

September-15 993,256          975,294          17,962            2,597,701      2,556,685      41,016            3,217               3,594,174      

October-15 685,984          664,769          21,215            2,416,380      2,378,684      37,696            2,498               3,104,862      

November-15 551,017          523,799          27,218            1,891,108      1,857,279      33,829            2,365               2,444,490      

December-15 (5,842)             2,782               (8,624)             22,196            20,512            1,684               -                   16,354            

January-16 1,037,295      992,166          45,129            3,876,402      3,805,060      71,342            6,900               4,920,597      

February-16 498,178          486,377          11,801            1,890,491      1,848,960      41,531            6,011               2,394,680      

March-16 551,501          524,521          26,980            2,063,314      2,023,537      39,777            5,114               2,619,929      

April-16 493,379          480,050          13,329            1,925,695      1,893,350      32,345            3,035               2,422,109      

May-16 1,369,689      1,341,431      28,258            3,267,772      3,040,594      227,178          2,417               4,639,878      

June-16 1,050,804      999,019          51,785            3,329,364      3,271,659      57,705            2,741               4,382,909      

Total 9,625,061      9,340,380      284,681          32,511,886    31,786,274    725,612          43,666            42,180,613    

Average Month 802,088          778,365          23,723            2,709,324      2,648,856      60,468            3,639               3,515,051      

Peak Month - Volume 1,379,871      1,360,013      51,785            5,121,849      5,044,476      227,178          6,900               6,506,579      

Peak Month Aug-15 Aug-15 Jun-16 Aug-15 Aug-15 May-16 Jan-16 Aug-15

Peak Month Factor 1.7203            1.7473            2.1829            1.8905            1.9044            3.7570            1.8962            1.8511            

Average Day 26,370            25,590            780                  89,074            87,086            1,988               120                  115,563          

Peak Day 44,512            43,871            1,726.17         165,221          162,725          7,328               223                  209,890          

Peak Day Factor 1.6880            1.7144            2.2132            1.8549            1.8686            3.6863            1.8605            1.8162            



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 16 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

 

Table 6 - Schedule of Current and Projected Molalla Water Rates 

 

 

Rate Design Alternatives 

The City’s current water rate methodology is sound, conforms to industry practice, and promotes 
conservation.  We see no reason to move off of this methodology. 

 
  

Effective on July 1

Water Rate Component 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Monthly base rate - $/Account 13.07$      13.44$      13.80$      14.18$      14.57$      15.05$      

Volume charge - $/Ccf 2.87$        2.95$        3.03$        3.11$        3.20$        3.31$        



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 17 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Analysis of Wastewater System Revenue Requirements 

For the budget year (fiscal 2018), it is forecast that the wastewater utility will generate sufficient revenues 
from rates, charges and fees to meet its obligations and produce an unappropriated ending balance in the 
Wastewater Operating Fund of $215,240.  The beginning balance for this same fiscal year is estimated to 
be $380,021.  This level of operating reserve represents 35 days of wastewater system operating expenses 
and is below our recommended level of sixty (60) days of operating expenses.  The strategy for the 
wastewater utility is to gradually raise the fund balance (via annual rate increases) up to the 
recommended reserve level by the end of the five year forecast horizon. 

For the forecast of revenue requirements, the following assumptions were made based on discussions 
with City staff: 

Inflation in costs and growth in the customer base – Per guidance from City staff, the following factors 
were applied for estimating future cost escalation: 

 All direct labor line items – 3.0% per year 

 Pension plan contributions (City cost) – 8.0% per year 

 Health insurance premiums (City cost) – 6.0% per year 

 Professional services (including contract services) – 3.0% per year 

 All other operating expense line items – 3.0% per year 

 The growth forecast expressed in the annual increase in Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDUs) is 
estimated to be 1.0% per year over the five (5) year forecast horizon. 

Capital Improvement Plan Funding In the upcoming budget year 2018, total wastewater system capital 
improvement costs are estimated to be $511,000.  All of the projects are related to the wastewater 
treatment and collection system, and consist of the following projects: 

Project Description Cost 

Wastewater master plan $200,000 

City Shops improvements 137,000 

WWTP – Rebuild & add new headworks screen 121,000 

WWTP – Headworks gantry crane 3,000 

WWTP – Spare parts inventory     50,000 

 Total $511,000 

It is assumed all project costs will be funded with cash on hand or cash that is generated from wastewater 
rates, and is accounted for in the revenue requirements calculations.  We have not budgeted for any costs 
in the other minor capital line items. 

Over the next twenty years, the City plans on investing $29,561,772 (2016 dollars) in the wastewater 
system, the preponderance of which will be spent on collection system repair, replacement, and 
expansion.  The first five years of investments amounts to $7,083,176, and is also shown graphically in 
Figure 3. 

 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 18 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Figure 3 - Forecast of Wastewater Capital Expenditures 

 

Under this initial wastewater system financial plan, it is assumed that all of the capital improvement costs are to be funded from a mix of new 
debt, wastewater SDCs, and free cash flow generated in the wastewater operating fund.  The water CIP funding plan is shown below in Table 7. 

 

 

$511,000 

$2,082,145 

$1,551,036 
$1,746,068 

$1,192,927 

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

$4,000,000

$4,500,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Collection Pump Stations Treatment Mtc. & Replacement



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 19 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Table 7 - Forecast of Future Wastewater System Capital Financing Plan 

 

 

As in the case of the water financial forecast, it should be noted, the City is budgeting for total wastewater 
rate revenues of $2,100,000 for fiscal 2017-18.  This level of ongoing cash flow in combination with future 
debt proceeds, fund balances in the water SDC and operating funds is sufficient to make the water capital 
funding plan work. 

Operating Costs in Excess of Inflation – As in the case of water, we have not identified any categories in 
this analysis.  Also, we have not planned or budgeted for any additional labor.  If the wastewater utility 
does add staff, these costs will impact the current revenue requirements forecast. 

Modeling for Contingencies, Reserves, and Ending Fund Balances – As discussed above, the Wastewater 
Operating Fund is expected to end fiscal 2017-18 with an unappropriated ending fund balance of 
$215,240; not enough to meet our minimum operating reserve requirements.  Our forecast assumes the 
City will be raising rates to fund all future wastewater system obligations and generate additional cash to 
increase the ending fund balance in the wastewater fund to meet the minimum operating reserve 
requirement by the end of fiscal 2021-22.    The forecast of targeted wastewater operating fund balances 
and operating reserve requirements is shown below in Figure 4. 

 

Capital Improvements Financing 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Capital Costs to be Funded 511,000       2,082,145    1,551,036    1,746,068    1,192,927    
less: Contributions from SDCs 283,000       563,350       -                -                -                
less:  Contributions From Construction Fund bal -                -                -                -                -                
less: Contributions From Utility Rates 228,000       -                -                -                -                
less: Developer Contributions -                -                -                -                -                

Amount to be Financed -                1,518,795    1,551,036    1,746,068    1,192,927    
Long-term Borrowing:
  Revenue Bonds:

Amount Borrowed -                1,640,428    1,675,251    1,885,903    1,288,463    
less: Financing Cost -                16,404         16,753         18,859         12,885         
less: Reserve Funding -                105,229       107,463       120,975       82,651         
less: Refunding of BANs -                -                -                -                -                

Net Funds from Revenue Bonds -                1,518,795    1,551,036    1,746,068    1,192,927    
New Annual Debt Service:

Debt Service -                105,229       212,691       333,667       416,318       



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 20 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Figure 4 - Forecast of Wastewater Operating Fund Balances and Operating Reserve Requirements 

 

 

Revenue Requirements Forecast & Results 

All of the above cost elements are contained in the revenue requirements model and from this, the “base 
case” forecast was developed.  The base case assumes the utility would fund the operating costs as 
adjusted for inflation.  This base case resulted in the following forecast of wastewater system revenue 
requirements (Table 8). 

 

383 

215 

265 

315 

365 

440 

303 

367 354 
380 

409 
432 

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

$350

$400

$450

$500

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

s

Total Ending Fund Balance 60 days' operating expenses



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 21 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Table 8 – Base Case Forecast of Wastewater System Revenue Requirements 

 

 

Table 8 shows, forecasted annual changes in wastewater system revenue requirements average 6.09% 
per year from fiscal 2018-19 through fiscal 2022-23.  On July 1, 2017, the City enacted a 6.48% general 
rate increase that is accounted for in the budget year 2017-18 budgeted rate revenues. 

Allocation of Revenue Requirements to Customer Classes (Cost of Service) 

The cost of service analysis is intended to provide the analytical basis for equitably recovering the 
forecasted revenue requirement from customer classes according to the demand they place on the 
wastewater system.  Consistent with industry practice, the analysis involves a two-step process; first, 
capital and O&M costs are allocated to the functional categories (service functions) of the wastewater 
system using operational and system design criteria.  Then, based on customer class characteristics 
derived from historical billing system data (i.e., number of customers and monthly water usage), these 
functionally allocated costs are distributed to the customer classes. 

Budget Forecast
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Projection of Cash Flow:
Revenues:

Total licenses and permits -                -                -                -                -                -                
Total Service Charges 2,100,000     2,100,000     2,237,762     2,398,246     2,573,861     2,737,861     
Total interest earned -                1,722            2,122            2,522            2,922            3,522            
Total other financing sources -                -                -                -                -                -                
Total miscellaneous income 33,000          33,990          35,010          36,060          37,142          38,256          

Subtotal gross operating revenues 2,133,000     2,135,712     2,274,894     2,436,828     2,613,925     2,779,639     
Operations & Maintenance Expense:

Total personal services 588,575        611,826        636,167        661,658        688,364        716,354        
Total materials and services 1,016,119     1,046,603     1,078,001     1,110,341     1,143,651     1,177,960     
Total capital outlay 66,652          68,652          70,711          72,833          75,018          77,268          
Transfers to other funds 398,435        496,394        600,499        717,612        795,892        791,011        

Total operations and maintenance expense 2,069,781     2,223,474     2,385,378     2,562,443     2,702,925     2,762,593     

(Use)/replacement of fund balance 63,219          50,000          50,000          50,000          75,000          100,000        

Net Cash (0)                  (137,762)       (160,484)       (175,615)       (164,000)       (82,954)         

Net Deficiency/(Surplus) 0                   137,762        160,484        175,615        164,000        82,954          

Test of Coverage Requirement:
Gross Revenues:

Operating revenues 2,133,000     2,135,712     2,274,894     2,436,828     2,613,925     2,779,639     
System Development Charges 94,000          95,880          97,798          99,754          101,749        103,784        

Total Gross Revenues 2,227,000     2,231,592     2,372,691     2,536,581     2,715,673     2,883,423     
Operating Expenses:

Total personal services 588,575        611,826        636,167        661,658        688,364        716,354        
Total materials and services 1,016,119     1,046,603     1,078,001     1,110,341     1,143,651     1,177,960     
Transfers to other funds 25,000          25,750          26,523          27,318          28,138          28,982          
Transfers to/(from) the rate stabilization account -                -                -                -                -                -                

Total Operating Expenses 1,629,694     1,684,179     1,740,690     1,799,317     1,860,153     1,923,296     

Net Revenues 597,306        547,414        632,002        737,265        855,521        960,127        

Debt Service 369,050        470,644        573,976        690,294        767,755        762,029        

Coverage Recognized 1.62              1.16              1.10              1.07              1.11              1.26              
Coverage Required 1.20              1.20              1.20              1.20              1.20              1.20              

Net Deficiency/(Surplus) (154,446)       17,359          56,770          91,088          65,785          (45,692)         

Projection of Revenue Sufficiency and Forecasted Rates:
Maximum Deficiency 0                   137,762        160,484        175,615        164,000        82,954          
Percent Increase Required Over Current Rate Revenues 0.00% 6.56% 7.17% 7.32% 6.37% 3.03%
Five Year Average Increase in Revenue Requirements 6.09% 6.09% 6.09% 6.09% 6.09%
Revenues Recovered From Existing Rates and Charges: 2,100,000     2,100,000     2,237,762     2,398,246     2,573,861     2,737,861     
add:  Revenues Recovered From Rate Increase 0                   137,762        160,484        175,615        164,000        82,954          

Total Revenues Recovered From Rates & Charges after Increase 2,100,000     2,237,762     2,398,246     2,573,861     2,737,861     2,820,815     



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 22 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Cost of service allocations are made for a test year considered representative of the period in which 
proposed rates are expected to be in effect.  Fiscal 2018 has been used as the test year for the cost of 
service analysis. 

Functional Cost Allocations 

Capital and operating costs are allocated to the following functional components of the wastewater 
system.  The wastewater functional components and their descriptions are shown in Table 9. 

 

Table 9 - Wastewater System Functional Components 

Wastewater Functional 
Component Description 

Customer Accounts 
Costs associated with providing service to customers regardless of the level 
of wastewater contribution, such as billing and customer service.  These 
costs are typically associated with the number of accounts or customers. 

Wastewater Flow (Q) 
Costs are associated with conveying and treating customer contributed 
wastewater flow (volume). 

Infiltration & Inflow (I&I) 
Costs are associated with conveying and treating I&I of groundwater and 
stormwater runoff into sanitary sewers. 

Strength of Discharge 
Costs are associated with treating effluent loadings of biochemical oxygen 
demand (BOD) and total suspended solids (TSS). 

 

Capital related costs include debt service payments, system reinvestment funding, and a portion of 
additions/uses of cash reserves.  The most common method of assigning the capital portion of the revenue 
requirement to functional components is to allocate such costs on the basis of existing plant-in-service.  
The allocation of historical plant assets utilizes documented engineering and planning criteria from both 
the City and industry standards.   

Operating costs include O&M expenses and a portion of additions/uses of cash reserves.  These costs are 
allocated to the functions based on a detailed review of line item categories, generally following the cost 
causation process used in the allocation of plant.  For example, customer billing related costs are assigned 
to the customer component; system operating costs for collection and treatment are allocated in the 
same manner as collection and treatment plant costs; other operational costs are assigned in proportion 
to total plant; and general and administrative costs are allocated in proportion to all other costs. 

The functional cost allocation process results in a pool of costs for each functional category. From these 
cost pools, unit costs are created that form the building blocks for designing rate structures that recognize 
the demands of each customer class.  As a result, costs will be recovered from customer classes based on 
their demand by functional category.  Through this process if one customer class places a higher or lower 
proportional average demand in one functional category, that customer class pays a higher or lower 
portion of that functional category's cost. 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 23 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Allocations to Customer Classes 

The next step in the cost of service analysis involves distribution of the functionally allocated system costs 
to the customer classes.  A key component in the allocation of system costs to customer classes is testing 
the reliability and accuracy of customer statistics. This is accomplished through a review of historical billing 
system data and application of the rate schedule in effect for that year. City staff provided historical billing 
system records for fiscal 2015-16, including number of accounts, equivalent residential units (ERUs), and 
monthly water usage. The test of reliability is conducted by applying the detailed billing statistics to the 
rates in effect for that year. The total revenue generated from these customer statistics should 
approximate the actual revenue receipts shown in the financial statements (with minor differences due 
to accounts receivables, delinquencies, timing of connections and disconnections throughout the year, 
etc.). If the revenue estimates are within reasonable limits, statistics are determined "valid" and an 
adjustment factor is applied to the statistics if necessary to account for any minor discrepancies. The 
results of this analysis indicated that the customer statistics are valid and will serve as a reasonable basis 
for projecting revenues and allocating system costs to the customer classes. 

Customer usage statistics are also evaluated to determine if current customer class designations 
represent an appropriate grouping of customers, or if revisions are warranted to better reflect groupings 
that exhibit similar usage patterns.  The City currently categorizes customers into two major groups for 
rate design purposes:  Residential includes single family residential (SFR), multi-family residential (MFR), 
and manufactured home parks. The same schedule of rates applies to all customers within this class. 

Commercial includes all non-residential customers, such as commercial businesses, schools, churches, etc. 
The same base charge applies to all customers within this class. The volume charge varies by subclass 
depending on an assumed strength concentration. 

The functionally allocated system-wide costs are allocated to the recommended customer classes to 
determine "cost shares" based on the relative demands placed on the system by each class. Test year 
fiscal 2016 customer statistics form the basis for this allocation. 

Functional costs are allocated to the customer classes as follows:  Customer costs are allocated based on 
proportional shares of total system number of accounts.  Wastewater flow costs are allocated to the 
customer classes based on their proportional share of total billed volume (winter water usage for SFR and 
actual monthly water usage for MFR and commercial customers).  I&I costs are allocated based on 
customer flow patterns.  Finally, strength costs are allocated to the customer classed based on their 
proportional share of total billed volume. 

Determine Rate Structure and Develop Rates 

The principal consideration in establishing utility rates is to obtain rates for customers that generate 
sufficient revenues for the utility and that are reasonably commensurate with the cost of providing 
service.  Other considerations in designing rates should include customer equity, incentives for 
conservation, ease of implementation, and impact on customer bills.  These considerations are consistent 
with the City's identified rate structure goals noted in the previous section. 

Existing and Projected Wastewater Rates 

The City’s current wastewater rate structure was last reviewed in 2010.  Although the structure has not 
changed since that time, the rates have been increased on a regular basis.  As in the case of water rates, 
billings for customers include two components: a fixed rate (demand charge) and a volume rate 
(commodity charge). The two components are added together to compute an invoice for each customer.  
The fixed rates are based on costs associated with maintaining/reading meters and the costs associated 
with billing and are charged per connection to the sewer system.  Volume rates are based on the customer 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 24 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

class for each 100 cubic feet (ccf) of water or a fixed amount if no measurable consumption is available.  
The last rate adjustments were made by the City Council via Resolution no. 2017-09 (dated June 14, 2017) 
with an implementation date of July 1, 2017.  The current and projected schedule of wastewater rates 
and charges is shown below in Table 10. 

 

Table 10 - Schedule of Molalla Wastewater Rates Effective December 15, 2015 

 

 

The City’s current wastewater rate structure is consistent with industry standard, and promotes 
conservation and equity.  Some of the key elements of this rate structure are: 

Treatment of Customers without Measurable Water Consumption 

Under the City’s wastewater rate structure, accounts are considered to be "without measurable water 
consumption" when potable water is obtained from a well or where the customer has no personal water 
consumption history established during the winter averaging period within the service area. For single 
family and multifamily residential customers, new customer accounts without history are set based on 
5.50 ccf (monthly) per dwelling unit until measurable consumption is recorded and used to establish a 
new rate.  Customers receiving only sewer service who obtain potable water from a well or another water 
provider are set based on 5.50 ccf (monthly). Adjustments may be made based on actual usage during the 
winter averaging months of November through April if the customer can provide sufficient 
documentation. 

For commercial customers without measurable water consumption history, a two-step policy is used as 
follows: 

1. Strengths will be defined by Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) code (i.e. restaurants defined 
as high) or the customer may elect to have a qualified laboratory regularly monitor and provide 
measurements of Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD), Total Suspended Solids (TSS) and other 
particulates (i.e. fats, oils, and grease) to the City. 

2. Volumes will be from certification of meter readings provided at the source (well or 3rd party 
provider).  It will be the customer's responsibility to obtain and forward meter readings to the City 
on a regular bases.  In absence of actual meter readings, the City will utilize average usage patterns 
from similar commercial customers with measurable usage. This method is to be an interim step 
until such time as a system to measure water usage can be implemented and/or received. 

Residential Customers Charged Based on Winter Average Water Consumption 

At one time, the City charged all residential wastewater customers on a flat rate basis.  Some time ago, 
the City moved off of this approach and implemented a consumption based rate (CBR) strategy for its 
residential class.  Commercial/industrial and wholesale customers have always been billed based on 
metered water consumption.  Under a CBR methodology, a portion of the wastewater bill is based on how 
much water a customer uses during the non-irrigation or winter average period, as winter water use is a 

Effective on July 1

Wastewater Rate Component 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Monthly base rate - $/EDU 35.95$      38.31$      41.06$      44.07$      46.88$      48.30$      

Volume charge - $/Ccf 3.56$        3.79$        4.06$        4.36$        4.64$        4.78$        



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 25 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

reasonable estimate of a customer’s wastewater discharge.  A CBR structure enhances the equity of the 
wastewater rates by relating a portion of an individual’s wastewater bill to the actual discharge into the 
collection and treatment system. When coupled with a service charge per account that continues to assess 
the majority of wastewater system costs on a fixed monthly basis, a CBR structure generally balances 
revenue stability and equity objectives.  The policy workings of the City’s winter average billing 
methodology for residential accounts is: 

1. Volume will be based on 6-month winter averaging of water consumption.  The winter average 
period will be defined as the 6-month period starting with the first full billing cycle starting on or 
after November 1st of each year. 

2. Accounts with an average usage of less than 1 ccf of water consumption are automatically 
assessed at the 5.50 ccf average. 

3. Customers may request in writing to have the sewer based on actual usage if the property is 
vacant (transition between tenants, foreclosure, etc.) or consistently averages below 1 ccf per 
billing cycle over a 12-month period. 

4. The assigned average for water consumption may be appealed to the City Manager, or his/her 
designee, and could be modified pending a review of the account and findings thereof. 

Commercial Customers Charged Based on Assumed Strength of Discharge 

The City’s current wastewater volume charge is monolithic and assumes all customers’ strength of 
discharge is the same.  Based on analysis of historical billing records, we have found that 94.0% of all 
accounts are single family residential, and 5.5% are large multifamily residential, light commercial.  The 
strength of discharge characteristics of this 99.5% of the Molalla population is indeed the same.  Industry 
surveys by the U.S. EPA, and the Water Environment Federation indicate these groups produce low 
strength of discharge in the range of 200 mg/liter BOD, and 200 mg/liter TSS. 

However, the remaining 0.5% of the Molalla population is classified as industrial (i.e., 15 accounts in fiscal 
2015-16).  We suggest the City consider billing these customers on their assumed strength of discharge.  
Under this approach, heavy commercial and industrial customers are grouped into low, medium, high, 
and industrial extra strength categories based upon their standard industrial classification.  The City’s 
strength of discharge class limits could be as follows (per industry guidelines): 

Strength  Classification BOD (mg/I) TSS (mg/I) 

Low 0-250 0-300 

Medium 251-500 301-600 
High 501-1,000 601-1,200 

Special 1,001+ 1,201+ 

Under this approach, the responsible person for paying the sewer charge may appeal the strength 
classification made by the City. Such appeal would be made in writing to the City Manager. The person 
appealing must provide sufficient information as to the strength of the sewer discharge created by their 
use so that the City Manager or designee may evaluate the evidence and determine the proper strength 
of the waste generated. 

Rate Design Alternatives 

There are a variety of wastewater rate structures in use across the state and the nation.  This study seeks 
to establish the guiding principles to be considered during the wastewater rate setting.  It is important to 
establish the principles in advance of undertaking the technical work of rate setting.  Once the principles 
are established and fixed, then the rate setting process evolves from them.  It must also be recognized 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 26 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

that there needs to be a balance in how the principles are applied; e.g., a flat rate is simple, but it may not 
necessarily be fair and equitable if customers are not equally responsible for the cost of the system.  The 
Review will seek to determine and evaluate alternatives by comparing the various types of rate structures 
against each principle to determine which structure most satisfies the principles. One must recognize that 
one or more principles may compete or be in direct contrast with another. Ultimately, the objective is to 
identify the structure that best meets as many of the principles as possible.  

Any rate structure that is considered must respect current legislation and contractual commitments. The 
main objective is to ensure the wastewater system is sustainable over the long term, thereby ensuring 
the protection of the health of citizens and the environment. The concepts of user pay and full cost pricing 
are key elements of which the City should address in the future. The question of what each customer pays 
is, however, a complex issue with varying viewpoints and interests. 

The following principles should be used to develop alternative rate structures for Council’s consideration:  

1. be fair and equitable  

2. promote conservation  

3. be affordable and financially sustainable  

4. stabilize revenue  

5. be justifiable  

6. be simple to understand  

7. support economic development;  

 

The City’s CBR rate structure has been in place for many years, and works well for the City and its 
customers.  Based on the equity the rate structure provides to customers, there is no reason to think the 
current rate structure for wastewater services is unfair or unreasonable.  We recommend the City stay 
with this rate structure at this time. 

  



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 27 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Analysis of Stormwater System Revenue Requirements 

For the budget year (fiscal 2018), it is estimated the stormwater utility will generate sufficient revenues 
from rates, charges and fees to meet its obligations and produce an unappropriated ending balance in the 
Stormwater Operating Fund of only $47,570.  The beginning balance for this same fiscal year is estimated 
to be $43,631. 

The stormwater utility has a revenue recovery problem, and the City Council is aware of this problem.  In 
1999, the City adopted a stormwater fee methodology to provide a mechanism that would generate 
revenue for the maintenance and operation of the stormwater collection and detention system.  That fee 
methodology used impervious area (IA) as the basis for charging customers.  Initially, the City assumed 
single family residential customers contributed 2,640 square feet of IA per home.  This became the basis 
for the EDU.  The plan then called for the City to measure the IA from all commercial, industrial, and 
institutional customers (via GIS data) to calculate their fees.  The measured IA for each of these non-single 
family residential customers would be divided by 2,640 to calculate the number of EDUs they contributed 
to the system and then be billed at the rate of $2.00 per EDU.  Unfortunately, at the time of 
implementation, the City chose to “cap” the total number of EDUs that any non-single family residential 
customer would be charged at 20 EDUs.  This policy has resulted in an under recovery of revenues required 
to fund the operations and maintenance of the stormwater systems.  During the fiscal 2017-18 budget 
process, the City Council was apprised of this commercial cap policy, and they have decided to discontinue 
the policy and they have directed Staff to bill the non-single family residential accounts based on their 
actual measured IA.  We have assumed this will be the case, and have recommended the City set the 
current monthly rate per EDU at $3.60.  If the cap policy had been continued, the calculated rate would 
have been $4.51 per EDU.  For modeling purposes, we have assumed new policy will be completely 
implemented in fiscal 2017-18. 

In the 1999 Storm Drainage User Fee Calculation, the EDU’s were set at 2,640 square feet of IA based on 
a Unified Sewerage Agency (now Clean Water Services) stormwater user fee.  A budget for operations and 
maintenance of the system was calculated and divided by the total number of EDU’s to determine a 
monthly price for EDU.  Eighteen years have passed since the adoption of this methodology and to date 
no revisions to the methodology have been approved.  As part of the 2017 utilities rate study, the Public 
Works Department performed an analysis of 30 randomly selected single family residential properties 
utilizing the City’s GIS system. Each property was measured for total IA and an average of 2,984 square 
feet of IA was calculated. A selection was made of all commercial, industrial, and residential properties 
not classified as single family residential and each property was measured for IA. The total IA calculated 
was 11,270,359 square feet, or 3,777 EDU’s. The total number of single family residential properties was 
2,244 giving a grand total of 6,021 EDU’s within the City. Applying the existing methodology from the 1999 
report, a cap of 20 EDU’s was applied to all large properties which in turn decreased the total number of 
EDU’s in the City to 4,539, a difference of 1,482 EDU’s or single family homes. The total number of 
properties which currently receive the 20 EDU cap is approximately 1.5% of all users. 

For the forecast of revenue requirements, the following assumptions were made based on discussions 
with City staff: 

Inflation in costs and growth in the customer base – Per guidance from City staff, the following factors 
were applied for estimating future cost escalation: 

 All direct labor line items – 3.0% per year 

 Pension plan contributions (City cost) – 8.0% per year 

 Health insurance premiums (City cost) – 6.0% per year 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 28 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

 Professional services (including contract services) – 3.0% per year 

 All other operating expense line items – 3.0% per year 

 The growth forecast expressed in the annual increase in Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDUs) is 
estimated to be 2.0% per year over the five (5) year forecast horizon.  For stormwater, an EDU is 
now defined as 2,984 square feet of IA. 

Capital Improvement Plan Funding – In the upcoming budget year 2018, total stormwater system capital 
improvement costs are budgeted at just $15,000.  Because the stormwater utility is so small, 
management’s focus is not on capital investments.  The primary focus is on operations and maintenance 
of the systems.  It is assumed this $15k will be funded with cash on hand or cash that is generated from 
stormwater rates, and is accounted for in the revenue requirements calculations.  We have not budgeted 
for any costs in the other minor capital line items. 

Modeling for Contingencies, Reserves, and Ending Fund Balances – As discussed above, we expect to end 
fiscal 2017-18 with an unappropriated ending fund balance of $47,570 in the Stormwater Operating Fund.  
This forecast is predicated on the assumption that the City will charge all 6,021 EDUs a monthly rate of 
$3.60 per EDU throughout the fiscal year.  In other words, the commercial property cap policy is no longer 
in force.  Based on this assumption, our modeling indicates the Stormwater Operating Fund will end all 
forecast years with an ending fund balance excess of sixty days of operating expenses.  The forecast of 
targeted Stormwater Operating Fund balances and operating reserve requirements is shown below in 
Figure 5. 

 

Figure 5 - Forecast of Stormwater Operating Fund Balances and Operating Reserve Requirements 

 

 

44 
48 

52 
57 

61 

66 

16 

34 35 36 38 39 

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

$70

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

s

Total ending fund balance 60 days' operating expenses



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 29 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Revenue Requirements Forecast & Results 

All of the above cost elements are contained in the revenue requirements model and from this, the “base 
case” forecast was developed.  The base case assumes the utility would fund the operating costs as 
adjusted for inflation.  This base case resulted in the following forecast of stormwater system revenue 
requirements (Table 11). 

Table 11 – Base Case Forecast of Stormwater System Revenue Requirements 

 

 

Table 11 shows, forecasted annual changes in stormwater system revenue requirements average 3.50% 
per year from fiscal 2018-19 through fiscal 2022-23.  On July 1, 2017, the City enacted a 20% general rate 
increase that is accounted for in the budget year 2017-18 budgeted rate revenues.  On a percentage basis, 

Budget Forecast
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Projection of Cash Flow:
Revenues:

Total licenses and permits -                -                -                -                -                -                
Total Service Charges 260,107        260,107        269,220        278,636        288,399        298,488        
Total interest earned -                381               416               453               490               527               
Total other financing sources -                -                -                -                -                -                
Bond proceeds for projects -                -                -                -                -                -                
Total miscellaneous income -                -                -                -                -                -                

Subtotal gross operating revenues 260,107        260,488        269,636        279,088        288,889        299,015        
Operations & Maintenance Expense:

Total personal services 128,081        133,219        138,603        144,246        150,164        156,371        
Total materials and services 78,410          80,762          83,185          85,681          88,251          90,899          
Total capital outlay 49,678          51,168          52,703          54,284          55,913          57,590          
Transfers to other funds (including debt service) -                -                -                -                -                -                

Total operations and maintenance expense 256,169        265,150        274,492        284,212        294,328        304,860        

(Use)/replacement of fund balance 3,938            4,450            4,560            4,640            4,650            4,610            

Net Cash 0                   (9,112)           (9,416)           (9,763)           (10,089)         (10,455)         

Net Deficiency/(Surplus) (0)                  9,112            9,416            9,763            10,089          10,455          

Test of Coverage Requirement:
Gross Revenues:

Operating revenues 260,107        260,488        269,636        279,088        288,889        299,015        
System Development Charges 17,480          17,830          18,186          18,550          18,921          19,299          

Total Gross Revenues 277,587        278,317        287,822        297,638        307,810        318,314        
Operating Expenses:

Total personal services 128,081        133,219        138,603        144,246        150,164        156,371        
Total materials and services 78,410          80,762          83,185          85,681          88,251          90,899          
Transfers to/(from) the rate stabilization account -                -                -                -                -                -                

Total Operating Expenses 206,491        213,982        221,788        229,927        238,415        247,270        

Net Revenues 71,096          64,336          66,033          67,711          69,395          71,045          

Debt Service -                -                -                -                -                -                

Coverage Recognized N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Coverage Required 1.20              1.20              1.20              1.20              1.20              1.20              

Net Deficiency/(Surplus) -                -                -                -                -                -                

Projection of Revenue Sufficiency and Forecasted Rates:
Maximum Deficiency -                9,112            9,416            9,763            10,089          10,455          
Percent Increase Required Over Current Rate Revenues 0.00% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
Five Year Average Increase in Revenue Requirements
Revenues Recovered From Existing Rates and Charges: 260,107        260,107        269,220        278,636        288,399        298,488        
add:  Revenues Recovered From Rate Increase -                9,112            9,416            9,763            10,089          10,455          

Total Revenues Recovered From Rates & Charges after Increase 260,107        269,220        278,636        288,399        298,488        308,943        



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 30 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

this is substantial, but the reader should consider the monthly rate went from $3.00 per EDU per month 
to $3.60 per EDU per month. 

Stormwater Rate Forecast – Eliminate Commercial Properties Cap Case 

The new stormwater base case rate forecast accounts for the added revenues recovered from 
commercial, industrial, and institutional customers that have previously been capped at 20 EDUs per 
account.  Under this case, our modeling indicates the City can move forward with modest stormwater rate 
increases over the five year forecast horizon, and actually add to its current tenuous reserve base.  The 
forecast of targeted Stormwater Operating Fund balances and operating reserve requirements for the 
new base case is shown below in Table 12. 

 

Table 12 - Forecast of Monthly Stormwater Rates 

 

 

  

Budget Forecast
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Gross revenues required from rates:

Operations and maintenance expense 206,491     213,982     221,788     229,927     238,415     247,270     
Operating fund capital outlays 49,678      51,168      52,703      54,284      55,913      57,590      
Transfers to other funds (including debt service) -            -            -            -            -            -            
(Use)/Replacement of Operating Fund balance 3,938        4,450        4,560        4,640        4,650        4,610        

Subtotal gross revenues required from rates 260,107     269,600     279,052     288,852     298,978     309,470     
Revenue offsets to cost of service:

Total licenses and permits -            -            -            -            -            -            
Total interest earned -            381           416           453           490           527           
Total other financing sources -            -            -            -            -            -            
Bond proceeds for projects -            -            -            -            -            -            
Total miscellaneous income -            -            -            -            -            -            

Subtotal revenue offsets to cost of service -            381           416           453           490           527           

Net revenues required from rates 260,107     269,220     278,636     288,399     298,488     308,943     

Forecasted billable retail EDUs 6,021        6,141        6,264        6,389        6,517        6,648        

Monthly rate - $/EDU 3.60$        3.65$        3.71$        3.76$        3.82$        3.87$        



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 31 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Transportation Capital Projects Fee Methodology 

In 2016, the City reviewed its system development charge (SDC) methodology and schedule of charges for 
transportation SDCs.  As part of that study, the City concluded it was facing a transportation funding gap.  
Over the next ten years, there was an identified need of $21.7 million for transportation capital 
improvement projects.  Out of this total needs assessment, the City estimated $15.0 million could legally 
be funded from SDCs (i.e., growth).  This left a funding gap of $6.7 million.  The projects (and costs) that 
comprise these ten year needs total are shown below in Table 13. 

 

Table 13 - Ten Year Transportation Needs and Proposed Funding Sources 

 

 

 

Project Description

Estimated Cost of 

Improvements in 

2016 Dollars

Project Cost 

Attributed to 

Existing Demands

Project Cost 

Attributable to 

Future Demands Total Costs

Intersection Improvments:

Highway 211/Highway 213 675,855$                 -$                          675,855$                 675,855$                 

Toliver Road/Highway 213 495,627                   -                            495,627                   495,627                   

Meadow Drive/Highway 213 225,285                   -                            225,285                   225,285                   

Mathias Road/Freyrer Park Road 150,190                   -                            150,190                   150,190                   

Main Street/Grange Street 30,038                      -                            30,038                      30,038                      

Molalla Avenue/Main Street 240,304                   -                            240,304                   240,304                   

Molalla Avenue/Toliver Road 225,285                   -                            225,285                   225,285                   

Leroy Avenue/Main Street 300,380                   -                            300,380                   300,380                   

Molalla Avenue/Shirley Street 225,285                   -                            225,285                   225,285                   

Mathias Road/Main Street 600,760                   -                            600,760                   600,760                   

Molalla Forest Road/Main Street 225,285                   -                            225,285                   225,285                   

Vick Road/Highway 213 135,171                   -                            135,171                   135,171                   

Vaughn Road/Highway 211 150,190                   -                            150,190                   150,190                   

Sawtell Road/Molalla Avenue/Wilhoit 150,190                   -                            150,190                   150,190                   

Sawtell Road/Eves Road 150,190                   -                            150,190                   150,190                   

Street Reconstruction Projects:

May Avenue 112,643                   62,579                      50,063                      112,643                   

Section Avenue 150,190                   66,751                      83,439                      150,190                   

Heintz Street 315,399                   315,399                   -                            315,399                   

South Cole 210,266                   116,814                   93,452                      210,266                   

Shirley 555,703                   555,703                   -                            555,703                   

Lola Avenue 347,100                   173,550                   173,550                   347,100                   

Roadway Widening Projects:

Ped and Bicycle Improvements 187,738                   -                            187,738                   187,738                   

Ped and Bicycle Improvements 187,738                   -                            187,738                   187,738                   

Toliver Road 3,003,800                1,181,823                1,821,977                3,003,800                

Ped and Bicycle Improvements 375,475                   -                            375,475                   375,475                   

Downtown Bypass (Highway 211) 277,852                   91,099                      186,753                   277,852                   

Downtown Bypass (Molalla Forest Road) 6,458,170                2,117,433                4,340,737                6,458,170                

Downtown Bypass (Mathias Road) 1,952,470                640,154                   1,312,316                1,952,470                

Highway 213 750,950                   295,456                   455,494                   750,950                   

Molalla Avenue 2,543,540                1,000,737                1,542,803                2,543,540                

Plans, Studies, & Policies:
Update Transportation System Master Plan 250,000                   -                            250,000                   250,000                   

Total 21,659,067$           6,617,498$             15,041,569$           21,659,067$           



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 32 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

The only dedicated funding sources available to fund this gap are motor fuel taxes and PGE franchise fees.  
It is estimated that roughly 90% of these resources are dedicated to operation and maintenance of the 
public right of way, and not capital projects funding.  For fiscal 2017-18, the total budgeted receipts in the 
Street Fund from these two sources is $694,000.  Assuming only ten percent of this total could be 
dedicated to capital projects funding, that amounts to $69,400, or one percent (1%) of the total unfunded 
need.  Over the ten years of capital needs (i.e., $6.7 million) dedicated funding sources would only be able 
to contribute $694,000.  The net capital projects fee basis after deducting the contributions from these 
dedicated funding sources amounts to $5.9 million. 

Once the net system revenue requirement is understood, a funding strategy has to be developed.  In this 
case, there are two options available to the City.  The first is a pay as you go strategy.  As the title implies, 
a fee would have to be established to cash finance 100% of the ten year system revenue requirement. For 
ease of analysis, we have assumed the annual revenue requirement would be 1/10th per year, or $592k 
per year.  The second strategy would call for debt financing of the ten year revenue requirement.  In this 
case, the total net revenue requirement (i.e., $5.9 million) could be funded with the proceeds of a senior 
lien revenue bond.  For this analysis, we have assumed the City would issue a 20 year bond at an interest 
rate of 3.00%.  For ease of analysis, we have not complicated the analysis with any issuance costs, or debt 
service reserve requirements.  The resulting annual debt service on this type of bond is $398,152. 

Now that the annual net revenue requirements of the fee are calculated, we need to settle on who pays 
for the program.  In Oregon, the most common approach to such fees is a surcharge on existing City utility 
customers.  We have chosen to tie the fee to active water customer accounts for this analysis.  As of June 
30, 2016, there were 2,700 active, in-City, water customers. 

The final step in the calculation of the fee is to divide the annual revenue requirements by the total 
number of active water accounts.  The resulting annual fee is then divided by 12 to arrive at the monthly 
transportation capital projects fee.  The calculations are shown below in Table 14. 

 

Table 14 - Derivation of a Transportation Capital Projects Fee 

 

 

 Pay As You 

Go Bonded

Derivation of transportation capital projects fee (TCPF) basis:

Total master plan project costs to be funded from non-SDC sources 6,617,498$  6,617,498    

less:  Known transportation funding sources

Ten percent of state gas tax receipts for ten years 540,000        540,000        

Ten percent of PGE franchise fees for ten years 154,000        154,000        

Master plan project costs to be recovered from TCPF over ten years 5,923,498$  5,923,498$  

Annual TCPF fee revenue requirement 592,350$     

Annual debt service on TCPF bonds (20 year bonds) 398,152$     

Active in-city water accounts as of June 30, 2016 2,700            2,700            

Fiscal 2017-18 monthly TCPF per active in-city water account 18.28$          12.29$          



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 33 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

 

City Staff and the rate study project team were tasked with identifying a new dedicated funding source 
that could fund the projected $6.7 million.  This effort resulted in the formulation of a monthly fee that 
would be added to all active water customers’ bills within the City.  Our analysis of fiscal 2017-18 budget 
and utility billing data indicate this transportation capital projects fee could be in the range of $12.29 - 
$18.28 per active account per month.  The low end of the range assumes the City borrows (bonds) the 
total revenue requirement of the program, and pledges the monthly rate revenues to pay the future debt 
service on the bonds.  The high end of the range assumes a pay as you go strategy. 

Rate Study Conclusions and Recommendations 

Conclusions 

On balance, the City’s utilities are in good financial condition.  Fund balances exceed minimum operating 
reserve requirements for water and stormwater.  However, the projected ending fund balance in the 
wastewater fund on June 30, 2018 does not meet a minimum reserve requirement of 60 days of operating 
expenses, and will have to be rectified via future general rate increases.  Revenue bond debt service 
coverage on water and wastewater debt exceeds covenants. 

Over the next five years (including the fiscal year that just started on July 1, 2017), the water utility has 
planned capital improvements that total $6.9 million (adjusted for inflation).  In order to keep rate 
increases manageable, our modeling indicates the City will have to borrow approximately $3.8 million 
over this time frame (before issuance costs and debt service reserves funding).  The balance of the water 
system capital costs will be funded from SDCs ($2.1 million), and cash contributions from rates ($1.0 
million).  By the end of fiscal 2021-22, we are forecasting total principal and interest payments on this 
new water system debt to be $263,207 per year (assuming 20 year senior lien revenue bonds).  
Fortunately, the current water system legacy debt, the Series 2010 Water Refunding Revenue Bonds will 
by retied in fiscal 2017-18 freeing up $350,000 per year in free cash flow.  By the end of this five year 
forecast period, we estimate the water SDC fund will have an ending fund balance of $82k and the water 
operating fund will have and ending fund balance of $350k.  This can be accomplished with average annual 
rate increases of 2.86% per year, and will be sufficient to meet system financial needs. 

The wastewater utility is facing some financial challenges.  First, the utility has $3.8 million in principal 
outstanding on long term debt as of June 30, 2017.  This legacy debt consists of the 2010 sewer refunding 
bonds and the 2008 Clean Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan.  These debts will not be retired until 
2025 for the bonds, and 2028 for the loan.  The total annual debt service on these two debt instruments 
is $502k per year.  Second, over the next five years, the wastewater utility is planning on spending $7.1 
million (adjusted for inflation) on capital improvements.  In order to manage future rate spikes resulting 
from this spend, our modeling indicates the City will have to bond a significant portion of the future capital 
projects costs.  Out of the $7.1 million need, we conclude the City will have to borrow $6.0 million (before 
issuance costs and debt service reserves funding).  Even though most of the total is SDC eligible, the City 
will only be able to contribute $846k in SDCs over the forecast horizon.  This is due to low wastewater SDC 
fund balance and the City policy of using SDCs to pay the annual principal component of the SRF loan debt 
service.  Finally, based on the adopted fiscal 2017-18 wastewater system budget, the City is projected to 
end the year with an operating reserve of $215k (i.e., Wastewater Fund ending fund balance).  This reserve 
represents 35 days of wastewater system operating expenses, and is well below our recommended 
reserve level of 60 days of operating expenses.  In order to correct this deficiency, we have gradually 
increased rates over the five year forecast horizon to bring the wastewater fund balance up to 60 days of 
operating expenses by June 30, 2022.  Our modeling indicates that all of these system requirements can 
be funded with average annual rate increases of 6.09% per year.  By the end of the five year forecast 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 34 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

horizon, we project the wastewater SDC fund will have and ending fund balance of $129k, and the 
wastewater operating fund will have a corresponding cash balance of $440k. 

The stormwater utility has a revenue recovery problem, and the City Council is aware of this problem.  In 
1999, the City adopted a stormwater fee methodology to provide a mechanism that would generate 
revenue for the maintenance and operation of the stormwater collection and detention system.  That fee 
methodology used impervious area (IA) as the basis for charging customers.  Initially, the City assumed 
single family residential customers contributed 2,640 square feet of IA per home.  This became the basis 
for the Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU).  The plan then called for the City to measure the IA from all 
commercial, industrial, and institutional customers (via GIS data) to calculate their fees.  The measured IA 
for each of these non-single family residential customers would be divided by 2,640 to calculate the 
number of EDUs they contributed to the system and then be billed at the rate of $2.00 per EDU.  
Unfortunately, at the time of implementation, the City chose to “cap” the total number of EDUs that any 
non-single family residential customer would be charged at 20 EDUs.  This policy has resulted in an under 
recovery of revenues required to fund the operations and maintenance of the stormwater systems.  
During the fiscal 2017-18 budget process, the City Council was apprised of this commercial cap policy, and 
they have decided to discontinue the policy and they have directed Staff to bill the non-single family 
residential accounts based on their actual measured IA.  As part of this process, Public Works staff have 
remeasured all parcels in the City (via geographical information system (GIS) data) and have recalibrated 
the EDU to 2,980 square feet of IA.  We have assumed this will be the case, and have recommended the 
City set the current monthly rate per EDU at $3.60.  If the cap policy had been continued, the calculated 
rate would have been $4.51 per EDU. 

The methodology that we are proposing for the construction of a transportation capital projects fee is 
based on generally accepted rate making practice, and has been reviewed by City Staff.  We believe the 
City is justified in implementing this fee because there is no other dedicated funding source that we could 
find to meet the need.  There are two options for the construction of the fee, as discussed in the opening 
remarks of this report.  If the City bonds the entire capital projects revenue requirement, the monthly fee 
comes to $12.29 per active utility account per month.  If the City chooses to follow a pay as you go 
strategy, the fee comes to $18.28 per active utility account per month. 

 

 

 

  



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 35 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Recommendations 

The recommendations of this municipal utilities rates study are pragmatic and reasonable.  Our 
recommendations are focused on securing the financial future of the utilities and to make sure that all 
customers who receive the benefits of utilities services pay their proportionate share of the costs of 
delivering those utility services.  We specifically recommend the following: 

 No rate increases are required for the current fiscal year 2017-18.  However, beginning on July 
1, 2018, we recommend the City adjust utility rates by an average annual percentage increase 
through June 30, 2023 as follows: 

 Water ........................................... 2.86% per year for each year of the five year forecast 

 Wastewater ................................. 6.09% per year for each year of the five year forecast 

 Stormwater .................................... 3.5% per year for each year of the five year forecast 

 Follow through with the elimination of the current stormwater fee “capping” policy for non-
single family residential properties.  The primary purpose of the stormwater utility is to keep 
City streets clear of standing stormwater, eliminate localized flooding throughout the City, and 
enhance the water quality in the receiving streams.  Exemptions only hamper the City from 
completing this mission. 

 Present the proposed methodology for implementing a monthly transportation capital projects 
fee to the Molalla City Council via work session.  Offer both of the funding options (i.e., bonding 
of the revenue requirement and the pay as you go strategy), and get feedback from the Council.  
If the Council chooses to proceed with one of the options, develop a customer outreach and 
education plan for rolling out the fee.  Consider a target implementation date of July 1, 2018. 

 Continually monitor the cash positon of the wastewater fund.  If the fund balance falls below 30 
days of operating expenses in this fiscal year (FY 2017-18), consider implementing cost controls 
and or an interim rate increase to bring the fund balance up.  Our proposed future wastewater 
rate increases are programmed to build the fund balance to an acceptable reserve level of 60 
days of operating expenses over five years. 

 

 

Neighboring Communities’ Utility Rates 

Shown below in Figures 8 through 12 are charts that compare the current utility rates for a single family 
customer in Molalla to the same charges in similar communities in the region. 

 



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 36 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Figure 6 - Comparison of Neighboring Communities' Water Rates 

 

$29.66 

$34.02 

$34.59 

$37.57 

$41.77 

$46.55 

$50.28 

$52.60 

$58.41 

$65.78 

$0 $10 $20 $30 $40 $50 $60 $70

 Woodburn

 Salem

 Dundee

 Canby & CUB

 Molalla

 Silverton

 Newberg

 Portland

 Wilsonville

 Cornelius

Regional Water Rates for 10 Ccf of Water per Month - July, 2017



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 37 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Figure 7 - Comparison of Neighboring Communities' Wastewater Rates 

 

$32.23 

$45.05 

$46.20 

$48.97 

$50.82 

$54.01 

$55.53 

$60.13 

$65.71 

$66.46 

$0 $10 $20 $30 $40 $50 $60 $70

 Salem

 Cornelius

 Canby & CUB

 Woodburn

 Wilsonville

 Portland

 Molalla

 Silverton

 Newberg

 Dundee

Regional Wastewater Rates for 5.5 Ccf of Winter Average Monthly Flow - July, 2017



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 38 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Figure 8 – Comparison of Neighboring Communities’ Street Maintenance Fees 

 

$-

$-

$-

$-

$-

$2.80 

$4.99 

$5.00 

$9.20 

$10.51 

$0 $10 $20

 Cornelius

 Dundee

 Molalla

 Portland

 Woodburn

 Salem

 Newberg

 Canby & CUB

 Silverton

 Wilsonville

Regional Monthly Combined Street Lighting and Street Maintenance Rates  - July, 2017



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 39 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Figure 9 - Comparison of Neighboring Communities' Stormwater Rates 

 

$-

$-

$3.60 

$5.22 

$6.00 

$7.17 

$8.67 

$9.30 

$13.15 

$17.84 

$0 $10 $20

 Canby & CUB

 Woodburn

 Molalla

 Salem

 Dundee

 Silverton

 Newberg

 Wilsonville

 Cornelius

 Portland

Regional Monthly Stormwater Rates  - July, 2017



 

City of Molalla, Oregon  Page 40 
2017 Utilities Rate Study Final Report  July, 2017 

Figure 10 - Comparison of Neighboring Communities' Combined Water, Wastewater, Street Maintenance, Stormwater Rates, and Parks 

 

$74.27 

$78.63 

$88.77 

$100.90 

$107.05 

$123.98 

$124.45 

$124.57 

$129.04 

$129.65 

$0 $20 $40 $60 $80 $100 $120 $140

Salem

Woodburn

Canby & CUB

Molalla

Dundee

Cornelius

Portland

Silverton

Wilsonville

Newberg

Salem Woodburn Canby & CUB Molalla Dundee Cornelius Portland Silverton Wilsonville Newberg

Water $34.02 $29.66 $37.57 $41.77 $34.59 $65.78 $52.60 $46.55 $58.41 $50.28

Wastewater $32.23 $48.97 $46.20 $55.53 $66.46 $45.05 $54.01 $60.13 $50.82 $65.71

Street Maintenance $2.80 $- $5.00 $- $- $- $- $9.20 $10.51 $4.99

Stormwater $5.22 $- $- $3.60 $6.00 $13.15 $17.84 $7.17 $9.30 $8.67

Parks $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $1.52 $- $-

Total $74.27 $78.63 $88.77 $100.90 $107.05 $123.98 $124.45 $124.57 $129.04 $129.65



 

 

Background:  

Attached is a report from Public Works for City Council consideration. Staff recommends that 

Council review and discuss the report provided by Public Works and determine if it wants 

staff to prepare a Street Maintenance Utility Fee resolution for review and approval. 

 

 
 

City	Of	Molalla	
City	Council	Meeting	

 
	Agenda	Category:	New	Business	–	Report		

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Gerald Fisher, Public Works Director   
APPROVED BY:   Dan Huff, City Manager	 	 	 																																										

Subject:  Street Maintenance Utility Fee Options 

Recommendation:   Council Review 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:   August 09, 2017

Fiscal Impact:  None 



     Public Works Department 
                                  117 N Molalla Avenue 

                                                                        PO Box 248 
                                           Molalla, Oregon  97038 
                                       Phone: (503) 829-6855 

                        Fax: (503) 829-3676 
 

City of Molalla  Public Works Department    117 N. Molalla Avenue, Molalla, OR 97038    (503) 759-0218 

 

              

August 04, 2017 

 
TO: Dan Huff, City Manager 
  
FROM: Gerald Fisher, Public Works Director 
 
RE:  Street Maintenance Utility Fee Options 

Dan, 

On August 10, 2016, staff presented the Pavement Management Budget Options Report to 

City Council outlining the existing Pavement Condition Index (PCI) and budget alternatives. 

The PCI at that time was rated at an average of 61 which is considered Fair (50-69) on the PCI 

rating curve. Staff did a preliminary review of the estimated amount of a Street Maintenance 

Utility Fee for the four scenarios presented in the report (Table 1). 

Table 1 – Summary of outcome of different funding levels (Scenarios) 

 
Scenario Name 

 
Budget 

Final PCI 
(change) 

Deferred 
maintenance 

2025 
% good 

2025 
% Very Poor 

 
1 – Unconstrained 

$16.4 million 
over 10 years 

 
84   (+23) 

 
$0 

 
96.4% 

 
3.6% 

2 – Increase PCI to 70 
in 5 years 

$4.25 million 
over 5 years 

 
70     (+9) 

 
$10.6 million 

 
73.0% 

 
18.0% 

3 – Increase PCI to 75 
in 5 years 

$8.0 million 
over 5 years 

 
75   (+14) 

 
$6.7 million 

 
79.9% 

 
11.0% 

4 – Increase PCI to 75 
in 10 years 

$11.0 million 
over 10 years 

 
75   (+14) 

 
$7.1 million 

 
85.9% 

 
10.0% 

 2016 Values 61 $6.35 million 40.6% 10.8% 

 

The estimated monthly fee for a single family home was $47.01 for Scenario 1, $24.43 for 

Scenario 2, $45.98 for Scenario 3, and $31.61 for Scenario 4. 

Council discussed the need for funding maintenance of the City’s roadway system and 

ongoing efforts by Clackamas County to raise funds through a voter approved tax. To date, no 

additional funding stream has come from the County for street maintenance and the state 

legislature increased the state gas tax. The City will receive additional revenues from the new 

legislation but it is unclear how much the City will receive for pavement preservation. 



 
 

 

Last month staff received a pavement condition update from StreetSaver downgrading our 

PCI rating to 58 (see attached one page flier). This is likely due to little to no measurable 

pavement maintenance performed by the City due to lack of funding for street maintenance. 

Staff has put together several exhibits outlining the PCI done in 2016, streets planned for 

maintenance under Scenario 2, the repairs recommended in the first year of Scenario 2, and a 

refined breakdown of cost per single family home per month. Scenario 2 was selected 

because it would bring the overall PCI up to a level that is above Fair though still leaving a 

maintenance backlog of $10.6 million. Staff refined the methodology to count all single family 

homes, commercial properties, and industrial properties as one equivalent unit. Multifamily 

properties were based on number of units. An apartment complex with 10 units would be 10 

equivalent units. This generated a total number 3,545 equivalent units. Based on this number 

staff prepared maps identifying the work that could be performed in the first year of Scenario 

2. Pavement preservation options were selected assuming a monthly fee of $5, $7, $9, $11, 

and $21 (fully funded). The exhibits demonstrate which street maintenance alternatives could 

be performed assuming mobilization, traffic control, and optimal pricing for street 

maintenance work. The number of streets that could actually be maintained would be based 

on timing of bids, contractor workload for the year, fuel and asphalt prices, and number of 

qualified contractors available to perform the work. 

Recommendation for Funding 

While we understand that fees for sewer, water, and stormwater will continue to go up due 

to capital needs and the City is also looking at what it would take to fund its Transportation 

Capital Improvement Plan projects, maintenance of existing roadways is not sustainable 

based on existing gas tax revenues and franchise utility fee allocations for the Street Fund. If 

the community wants to protect its investment in its roadways and preserve recently 

constructed roadways, such as Heintz Street, Grange Avenue, Stowers Road, and Molalla 

Avenue, then it will need to provide a sustainable source of revenue dedicated to pavement 

preservation. Other communities in Oregon have already realized the need for investment 

and have implemented a Street Maintenance Utility Fee. These cities include Ashland, Canby, 

Bay City, Corvallis, Eagle Point, Grants Pass, Hubbard, La Grande, Lake Oswego, Medford, 

Milwaukee, Newberg, North Plains, Oregon City, Philomath, Phoenix, Salem, Silverton, 

Stayton, Talent, Tigard, Tualatin, West Linn, Wilsonville to name a few. 

While Public Works would prefer full funding of a street maintenance program we understand 

the burden of addition fees and its impact on our rate payers. No matter what funding level is 

approved, we will perform as much maintenance as possible with funding levels provided to 

us. 



April, 2016 City of Molalla



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -1- April, 2016    

 

Executive Summary 
 

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. was contracted by the City of Molalla Public Works 

department to perform a full pavement management implementation and visual inspections of all of 

the paved streets in the City of Molalla (City).  All 27.16 centerline miles of paved streets 

maintained by the City were evaluated in accordance with MTC standards, and the Streetsaver 

Online 9.0 database was updated with the inspection data.  Inspections were completed in April 

2016.   

 

The maintenance decision tree treatments and costs were reviewed and updated to reflect current 

pavement maintenance practices and treatment prices. Budgetary Needs analysis was performed 

based on the updated inspections and treatment costs and four budget scenarios were evaluated to 

compare the effects of various funding levels.   

 

The City’s street network consists of 27.16 centerline miles of streets.  A detailed visual inspection 

of the City’s streets resulted in a calculated average PCI of 61.  Using a 0-100 PCI scale, with 100 

being the most favorable, a rating of 61 places the City’s street network in the ‘Fair’ condition 

category.   

    

Four scenarios were analyzed for various street maintenance funding levels.  The budget includes 

preventative maintenance and rehabilitation work for existing paved street surfaces.  The 

recommended strategy of street maintenance, along with current prices for the treatments, was 

entered into a decision tree matrix.  This matrix defines what treatments need to be applied to 

streets in varying PCI condition.  Utilizing this decision matrix, it was determined that the City will 

need to spend $16.4 million over the next ten years to bring the street network into ‘optimal’ 

condition, or an overall street network PCI of 84.  At this level, the City should be able to maintain 

the street network in the future with mostly cost-effective preventative maintenance treatments 

(crack seals and surface seals).  Scenarios were also run to determine the funding level required to 

increase the overall network PCI to 70 by 2020, 75 in 2020, and 75 in 2025.  The City will need to 

invest significant funding for street rehabilitation in order to meet these goals.  Table 1 summarizes 

the findings of the Scenarios.   

 

Table 1 – Summary of outcome of different funding levels (Scenarios) 

Scenario Name Budget 
Final PCI 
(change) 

Deferred 
maintenance 

2025             
% good 

2025                           
% Very Poor 

1 – Unconstrained 
$16.4 million 
over 10 years   84    (+23) $0  96.4% 3.6% 

2 – Increase PCI to 70 
       in 5 years 

$4.25 million 
over 5 years   70      (+9) $10.6 million  73.0% 18.0% 

3 – Increase PCI to 75 
      in 5 years 

$8.0 million 
over 5 years   75    (+14) $6.7 million  79.9% 11.0% 

4 – Increase PCI to 75 
      in 10 years 

$11.0 million 
over 10 years   75    (+14) $7.1 million  85.9% 10.0% 

 2016 Values   61 $6.35 million 40.6%  10.8% 
 

  



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -2- April, 2016    

 
Purpose 
 

This report is intended to assist the City of Molalla with identifying street maintenance priorities 

specific to the City. 

 

The report examines the overall condition of the street network and highlights the impacts of 

various funding levels on the network pavement condition and deferred maintenance funding 

shortfalls.  The Metropolitan Transportation Commission, MTC, Streetsaver Pavement 

Management Program (PMP) was used for this evaluation.  The intent of this program is to develop 

a maintenance strategy that will improve the overall condition of the street network to an optimal 

Pavement Condition Index (PCI) in the low to mid 80’s and also to maintain it at that level.   

 

The MTC Streetsaver program maximizes the cost-effectiveness of the maintenance treatment plan 

by recommending a multi-year street maintenance and rehabilitation plan based on the most cost-

effective repairs available.  A comprehensive preventative maintenance program is a critical 

component of this plan, as these treatments extend the life of good pavements at a much lower cost 

than rehabilitation overlay or reconstruction treatments.  To this end, various ‘what-if’ analyses 

(scenarios) were conducted to determine the most cost-effective plan for maintaining the City’s 

street network over ten years and at various funding levels. 

 

  



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -3- April, 2016    

 
Pavement Management Strategy 
 

Pavement Management is a set of tools and philosophies designed to manage the maintenance 

activities of Asphalt Concrete and Portland Concrete Pavements.   A Pavement Management 

System consists of a module to keep track of existing and historical pavement condition data and a 

decision making process to help choose the most cost-effective maintenance strategies and which 

streets to treat when.   

 

Conventional wisdom of most public works and street department agencies has been to treat streets 

in a “worst-first” philosophy.  Under this “worst-first” policy, streets are allowed to deteriorate to a 

nearly failed condition before any rehabilitation (such as Overlays or Reconstructions), are applied.  

This can also be called the “don’t fix if it aint broke” mentality.     

 

Pavement Management Systems are designed with a more cost-effective, “Best-first” approach.  

The reasoning behind this philosophy is that it is better to treat streets with lower-cost, preventative 

maintenance treatments, such as Slurry Seals, Chip Seals, and Crack Seals, and extend their life 

cycle, before the street condition deteriorates to a state where it requires more costly rehabilitation 

and reconstruction treatments.  Generally, paved streets spend about three-quarters of their life-

cycle in fair to excellent condition, where the street shows little sign of deterioration, and has a high 

service level.  After this time, the street condition begins to deteriorate at a rapid rate and, if not 

maintained properly, soon reaches a condition where it will require costly overlays and 

reconstructions.  If treated with a surface seal and other preventative measures, the street condition 

will remain at a good level for a longer period of time.  Figure 1 shows a typical condition 

deterioration curve for a street.   

 

Figure 1 – Road Condition over time   

  

Cost - $2/sq yd to 
treat 

40% drop in quality in 
first 75% of service 

Cost $13.25/sq yd 

Further delays result in failed road 
requiring reconstruction $95 - $130/sq yd 

Additional 40% drop in 
quality in next 12% of 
service life 



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -4- April, 2016    

 
Existing Pavement Condition 
 

The City is responsible for the repair and maintenance of 27.16 centerline miles of paved streets. 

The City’s street network replacement value is estimated at $52.4 million.1  This asset valuation 

assumes replacement of the entire street network in present day dollars.   This represents a 

significant asset for City officials to manage.   

 

The average overall network Pavement Condition Index (PCI) of the City’s street network is 61, 

which indicates that the street network is in ‘Fair' condition.  The Pavement Condition Index is a 

measurement of pavement condition that ranges from 0 to 100.  A newly constructed or overlaid 

street would have a PCI of 100, while a failed street (requiring complete reconstruction) would have 

a PCI under 25.  Appendix B contains a report detailing the PCI information for each street. 

 

Table 2 details the network statistics and pavement condition by functional class.  Table 3 and 

Figure 2 present the Percent Network Area by Functional and Condition classes. 

 

Table 2 – Street Network Statistics and Average PCI by Functional Class 

Functional 

Class 

Centerline 

Miles 

Lane 

Miles 

# of 

Sections 

% of  Network 

(by Area) 

Average   

    PCI 

Arterial 1.21 2.41 8 5.7% 41 

Collector 5.09 10.18 25 18.6% 63 

Residential 20.87 41.73 175 75.7% 62 

Totals 27.16 54.33 208 -- 61 

 

Table 2 details the percentage of the street network area by each PCI range or condition category.   

 

Table 3 and Figure 2 – Percent Network Area by Functional Class and Condition Class  

Condition 

Class 

PCI 

Range 

Arterial Collector Residential Total 

Good  

(I) 
70-100 0.0% 5.8% 34.8% 40.6% 

Fair 

(II/III) 
50-69 0.0% 8.4% 16.4% 24.8% 

Poor  

(IV) 
25-49 5.7% 4.4% 13.7% 23.7% 

Very 

Poor (V) 
0-24 0.0% 0.0% 10.8% 10.8% 

Totals  5.7% 18.6% 75.7%  
 

 
 

 

                                                 
1 Replacement value is calculated as the current cost to reconstruct each street in the network  

Good 
40.6% 

Fair 
24.8% 

Poor 
23.7% 

Very 
Poor 

10.8% 



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -5- April, 2016    

 
Present Cost to Repair the Street Network 
 

The MTC Pavement Management Program (PMP) is designed to achieve an optimal network PCI 

somewhere between the low and mid 80’s, which is in the middle of the good condition category.  

In other words, the system will recommend maintenance treatments in an attempt to bring all of the 

streets in the City to a ‘good’ condition, with the majority of the streets falling in the low to mid 

80’s PCI range.  Streets with a PCI in the 80’s (as opposed to 70’s) will likely remain in the ‘good’ 

condition category for a longer period of time if relatively inexpensive preventive maintenance 

treatments are used.  Once the PCI falls below 70, more expensive rehabilitation treatments will be 

needed.  

 

The Budget Needs module of the PMP estimates a necessary funding level for the City’s Pavement 

Preservation and Rehabilitation Program of $16.4 million2 over the next ten-year period (2016 – 

2025) in order to improve and maintain the street network PCI at an optimal level in the lower to 

mid 80’s.  The majority of this spending, $14.0 million, occurs in the first five years.   

 

As mentioned earlier, the average PCI for the City’s streets is 61, which is in the ‘Fair' condition 

category.  Why then, does it cost so much to repair the City’s streets, and why bother improving 

them? 

 

First, the cost to repair and maintain a pavement depends on its current PCI.  In the ‘Good’ 

category, it costs very little to apply preventive maintenance treatments.   Such repairs extend the 

life of the pavement at relatively low costs, and prevent the pavement from deteriorating into 

conditions requiring more expensive treatments.  Preventive maintenance treatments include slurry 

seals, chip seals, and crack sealing, which can extend the life of a pavement by correcting minor 

faults and reducing further deterioration.  Minor treatments are applied before pavement 

deterioration becomes severe and usually costs less than $2.10/sq. yd3.  40.6% of the City’s street 

network would benefit from these relatively inexpensive, life-extending treatments. 

 

Once the PCI falls below 70, more expensive rehabilitation treatments may become necessary.  

Rehabilitation treatments, such as overlays (with or without mill), inlays, and reconstructions, add 

structure to the road and correct more serious distresses. 

 

24.8% of the City’s street network falls into the ‘Fair’ condition category.  Pavements in this range 

show some form of distress caused by traffic load related activity or environmental distress that 

requires more than a life-extending treatment.  At this point, a well-designed pavement will have 

served at least 75 percent of its life with the quality of the pavement dropping approximately 40 

percent.  The street surface may require a slurry seal with crack seal at $3.05/sq yd or 2.5" overlay 

at $13.25/sq yd.   

 

23.7% of the Town’s street network is in the ‘Poor’ condition category.  These pavements are near 

the end of their service lives and often exhibit major forms of distress such as potholes, extensive 

cracking, etc.  At this stage, a streets usually requires a thick overlay at $13.25/sq yd.  

 

                                                 
2 Treatment costs are based on this year’s average costs per square yard, with future years including a 3% inflation 

adjustment per year after 2016. 
3 For detailed treatments and costs used in analysis for this report, see appendix C – Decision Tree report 



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -6- April, 2016    

 

10.8% of the Town’s street network is in the ‘Very Poor’ condition category. Streets in the ‘Very 

Poor’ condition category indicate that the street has failed.  These pavements are at the end of their 

service lives and have major distresses, often indicating the failure of the sub base.  Streets at this 

stage require major rehabilitation, usually the complete reconstruct of the street.  Estimated costs to 

reconstruct the street surface are $95 to $130/sq yd. 

 

One of the key elements of a pavement repair strategy is to keep streets that are in the ‘Good’ or 

’Fair’ categories from deteriorating.  This is particularly true for streets in the ‘Fair’ range, because 

they are at the point where pavement deterioration accelerates if left untreated.  However, the 

deterioration rate for pavements in the ‘Poor’ to ‘Very Poor’ range is relatively flat and the 

condition of these streets will not decline significantly if repairs are delayed.  As more ‘Good’ 

streets deteriorate into the ‘Fair’, ‘Poor’, and ‘Very Poor’ categories, the cost of deferred 

maintenance will continue to increase.  The cost of the deferred maintenance backlog will stop 

increasing only when enough funds are provided to prevent streets from deteriorating into a worse 

condition category, or the whole network falls into the ‘Very Poor’ category (i.e. can not deteriorate 

any further).  The deferred maintenance backlog refers to the dollar amount of maintenance and 

rehabilitation work that should have been completed to maintain the street in “good” condition, but 

had to be deferred due to funding deficiencies for preventative maintenance and/or pavement 

rehabilitation programs. The actual repairs that are being deferred are often referred to as a 

“backlog.” 

 

Budget Needs 
 

Based on the principle that it costs less to maintain streets in good condition than bad, the MTC 

PMP strives to develop a maintenance strategy that will first improve the overall condition of the 

network to an optimal PCI somewhere between the low and mid 80’s, and then sustain it at that 

level.  The average PCI for the City is 61, which is in the ‘Fair' condition category.  Current funding 

strategies demonstrate there is a $11.0 million deferred maintenance backlog4 in the first year of the 

scenario.  If these issues are not addressed, the quality of the street network will inevitably decline.  

In order to correct these deficiencies, a cost-effective funding and maintenance and rehabilitation 

strategy must be implemented. 

 

The first step in developing a cost-effective maintenance and rehabilitation strategy is to determine, 

assuming unlimited revenues, the maintenance “needs” of the City’s street network. Using the PMP 

Budget Needs module; street maintenance needs are estimated at $16.4 million over the next ten 

years. If the City follows the strategy recommended by the program, the average network PCI will 

increase to 84.  If, however, current pavement maintenance funding is exhausted and little or no 

maintenance is applied over the next ten years, already distressed streets will continue to 

deteriorate, and the network PCI will drop to 40.  The results of the Budget Needs analysis are 

summarized in Table 5.5 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                 
4      Definition of deferred maintenance backlog can be found in Appendix A 
5 Actual program outputs are included in Appendixes B through F 



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -7- April, 2016    

 

Table 5.  Summary of Results from Needs Analysis 

Fiscal Years 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 
5 year 

subtotal 

PCI with Treatment 77 77 79 83 84  

PCI, no Treatment 60 58 56 54 51  

Budget Needs $6,367,393 $1,435,124 $1,890,285 $3,330,094 $969,078 $13,991,974 

Rehabilitation 
$6,151,976 $1,377,317 $1,871,508 $3,297,386 $944,527 $13,642,714 

Preventative 
Maintenance $215,417 $57,807 $18,777 $32,708 $24,551 $349,260 
 

Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
10 year 
Total 

PCI with Treatment 84 84 83 85 84 --- 

PCI, no Treatment 49 47 44 42 40 --- 

Budget Needs $208,551 $1,002,109 $132,688 $848,217 $176,594 $16,360,133  

Rehabilitation 
$169,738 $928,452 $0 $390,644 $16,728 $15,148,276  

Preventative 
Maintenance $38,813 $73,657 $132,688 $457,573 $159,866 $1,211,857  

 

Table 5 shows the level of expenditure required to raise the City’s pavement condition to an optimal 

network PCI of 84 and eliminate the current maintenance and rehabilitation backlog.  The results of 

the Budget Needs analysis represent the ideal funding strategy recommended by the MTC PMP.  Of 

the $16.4 million in maintenance and rehabilitation needs shown, approximately $1.2 million or 7.4 

percent is earmarked for preventive maintenance or life-extending treatments, while $15.2 or 92.6 

percent is allocated for the more costly rehabilitation and reconstruction treatments.   

 

Figure 3 illustrates the funding distribution by street functional classification. 

 

Figure 3.  Budget Needs Funding by Functional Class  

 

  

Arterial, 
$1,596,497 

Collector, 
$2,340,401 Residential, 

$12,423,235 



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -8- April, 2016    

 
Budget Scenarios 
 

Having determined the maintenance and rehabilitation needs of the City’s street network, the next 

step in developing a cost-effective maintenance and rehabilitation strategy is to conduct ‘what-if’ 

analyses.  Using the PMP budget scenarios module, the impact of various budget scenarios can be 

evaluated.  The program projects the effects of the different scenarios on pavement condition PCI 

and deferred maintenance (backlog).  By examining the effects on these indicators, the advantages 

and disadvantages of different funding levels and maintenance strategies become clear.   

 
1. Unconstrained (zero “deferred” maintenance) — The annual amounts, as identified in the Budget 

Needs analysis totaling $16.4 million over 10 years, were input into the Budget Scenarios module. 

This scenario shows the effects of implementing the ideal investment strategy (as recommended by 

the MTC PMP Needs module).   

2. Increase PCI to 70 in 5 years  — An average annual budget of $850,000 was evaluated over ten 

years, for a total of $4.25 million.  This funding level increases the overall PCI to 70 by 2020. 

3. Increase PCI to 75 in 5 years — An annual funding level of $1.6 million per year, for a ten year total 

of $8.0 million, was evaluated.  This funding level increases the overall PCI to 75 by 2020. 

4. Increase PCI to 75 in 10 years  — An annual budget of $1.1 million was evaluated over ten years, for 

a total of $11.0 million.  This funding level increases the overall PCI to 75 by 2025. 

Table 6. Scenario Summary 

Scenario Name Budget 
Final PCI 
(change) 

Deferred 
maintenance 

2025             
% good 

2025                           
% Very Poor 

1 – Unconstrained 
$16.4 million 
over 10 years   84    (+23) $0  96.4% 3.6% 

2 – Increase PCI to 70 
       in 5 years 

$4.25 million 
over 5 years   70      (+9) $10.6 million  73.0% 18.0% 

3 – Increase PCI to 75 
      in 5 years 

$8.0 million 
over 5 years   75    (+14) $6.7 million  79.9% 11.0% 

4 – Increase PCI to 75 
      in 10 years 

$11.0 million 
over 10 years   75    (+14) $7.1 million  85.9% 10.0% 

 2016 Values   61 $6.35 million 40.6%  10.8% 
 

 

 
 
  



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -9- April, 2016    

 
Scenario 1 — Unconstrained (zero deferred maintenance) 

This scenario shows the effects of implementing the ideal investment strategy (as recommended by 

the MTC PMP Needs module).  Because it is more cost-effective to eliminate the deferred 

maintenance backlog as quickly as possible, the bulk of the maintenance needs are addressed in the 

first five years of the ten-year program, raising the overall average network PCI to 84.  The PCI 

maintains at an optimal level through 2025.  By 2025, 96.4% of the network improves into the 

‘Good’ condition category, a significant increase from the current level of 40.6% in ‘Good’ 

condition. These results are shown in both Table 7 and Figure 4. 

Table 7.  Summary of Results from Scenario 1 — Unconstrained 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020  

Budget $6,367,393 $1,435,124 $1,890,285 $3,330,094 $969,078  

Rehabilitation $6,151,976 $1,377,317 $1,871,508 $3,297,386 $944,527  

Preventative $215,417 $57,807 $18,777 $32,708 $24,551  

Deferred $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  

PCI 77 77 79 83 84  

 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Total 

Budget $208,551 $1,002,109 $132,688 $848,217 $176,594 $16,360,133  

Rehabilitation $169,738 $928,452 $0 $390,644 $16,728 $15,148,276  

Preventative $38,813 $73,657 $132,688 $457,573 $159,866 $1,211,857  

Deferred $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 --- 

PCI 83 84 83 85 84  

Figure 4.  Summary of Results from Scenario 1 — Unconstrained 

 
 

77 77 
79 

83 
84 

83 
84 

83 
85 

84 

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

$7.0

$8.0

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

P
C

I 

D
e

fe
rr

e
d

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 (

in
 M

il
li

o
n

s
) 

Deferred Maintenance
PCI

Deferred Maintenance = $0 



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -10- April, 2016    

 

Scenario 2 — Increase PCI to 70 in 5 years 

This scenario determines the funding level that would be required to increase the overall network 

PCI by 9 points, to 70 over the next five years.  An annual investment level of $850,000, for a total 

of $4.25 million over five years, would be needed.  At this funding level, the deferred maintenance  

increases by $5.1 million, from $5.5 million in 2016, to $10.6 million in 2020.  The percentage of 

the street network in the ‘Good’ condition category increases from 40.6% currently, to 73.0% in 

2020.   The percentage of roads in ‘Very Poor’ condition increases to 18.0% from the current level 

of 10.8%.   These results are illustrated in Table 8 and Figure 5.   

 
Table 8.  Summary of Results from Scenario 2 — Increase PCI to 70 in 5 years 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total 

Budget $850,000 $850,000 $850,000 $850,000 $850,000 $4,250,000  

Rehabilitation $777,028 $795,987 $752,399 $798,807 $799,915 $3,924,136  

Preventative $72,864 $53,087 $97,613 $50,686 $49,866 $324,116  

Deferred $5,517,483 $6,269,057 $7,497,408 $10,202,930 $10,628,993  --- 

PCI 68 67 68 69 70  

 
Figure 5.  Summary of Results from Scenario 2 — Increase PCI to 70 in 5 years 

  

$5.52 
$6.27 

$7.50 

$10.20 $10.63 

68 67 68 69 70 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

P
C

I 

D
e

fe
rr

e
d

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 (

in
 M

il
li

o
n

s
) 

Deferred Maintenance PCI



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -11- April, 2016    

 

Scenario 3 — Increase PCI to 75 in 5 years 

This scenario determines the funding level that would be required to increase the overall network 

PCI by 14 points, to 75 over the next five years.  An annual investment level of $1.6 million, for a 

total of $8.0 million over five years, would be needed.  At this funding level, the deferred 

maintenance increases by $1.9 million, from $4.8 million in 2016, to $6.7 million in 2020.  The 

percentage of the street network in the ‘Good’ condition category increases from 40.6% currently, 

to 79.9% in 2020.   The percentage of roads in ‘Very Poor’ condition increases slightly, to 11.0% 

from the current level of 10.8%.   These results are illustrated in Table 9 and Figure 6. 

 
Table 9.  Summary of Results from Scenario 3 — Increase PCI to 75 in 5 years 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total 

Budget $1,600,000 $1,600,000 $1,600,000 $1,600,000 $1,600,000 $8,000,000  

Rehabilitation $1,547,911 $1,518,742 $1,563,337 $1,534,342 $1,512,176 $7,676,508  

Preventative $51,265 $80,720 $35,648 $62,925 $85,843 $316,401  

Deferred $4,768,197 $4,746,910 $5,180,619 $7,068,866 $6,655,608  --- 

PCI 69 70 71 73 75  

 
Figure 6.  Summary of Results from Scenario 3 — Increase PCI to 75 in 5 years 

  

$4.77 $4.75 $5.18 

$7.07 $6.66 

69 70 71 
73 

75 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

P
C

I 

D
e

fe
rr

e
d

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 (

in
 M

il
li

o
n

s
) 

Deferred Maintenance PCI



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -12- April, 2016    

 

Scenario 4 — Increase PCI to 75 in 10 years 

This scenario determines the funding level that would be required to increase the overall network 

PCI by 14 points, to 75 over the next ten years.  An annual investment level of $1.1 million, for a 

total of $11.0 million over ten years, would be needed.  At this funding level, the deferred 

maintenance increases by $1.8 million, from $5.3 million in 2016, to $7.1 million in 2025.  The 

percentage of the street network in the ‘Good’ condition category increases from 40.6% currently, 

to 85.9% in 2025.   The percentage of roads in ‘Very Poor’ condition decreases from 10.8% 

currently, to 10.0% in 2025.  These results are illustrated in Table 10 and Figure 7. 

 
Table 10.  Summary of Results from Scenario 4 — Increase PCI to 75 in 10 years 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020  

Budget $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000  

Rehabilitation $1,041,413 $1,033,480 $1,031,725 $1,018,376 $1,036,750  

Preventative $58,066 $65,046 $66,910 $81,306 $61,715  

Deferred $5,267,895 $5,762,531 $6,727,060 $9,159,286 $9,305,270  

PCI 68 68 69 70 71  

 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Total 

Budget $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $11,000,000  

Rehabilitation $1,018,532 $1,038,813 $1,032,292 $926,596 $938,286 $10,116,263  

Preventative $61,602 $60,190 $67,254 $172,501 $161,723 $856,313  

Deferred $8,712,885 $8,877,768 $8,177,433 $7,834,473 $7,134,406  --- 

PCI 72 73 73 74 75  

Figure 7.  Summary of Results from Scenario 4 — Increase PCI to 75 in 10 years 

  

$5.27 $5.76 
$6.73 

$9.16 $9.31 
$8.71 $8.88 

$8.18 $7.83 
$7.13 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

P
C

I 

D
e

fe
rr

e
d

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 (

in
 M

il
li

o
n

s
) 

Deferred Maintenance PCI



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -13- April, 2016    

 
Recommendations 
 

Of the various maintenance and funding options considered, the ideal strategy for the City is 

presented in Scenario 1, with a ten-year expenditure total of $16.4 million.  Not only does this 

surface management plan improve the network PCI to an optimal level of 84, it also eliminates the 

entire deferred maintenance backlog. As examined scenarios deviate from this strategy, the cost to 

the City will increase in the long term.  However, the amount of funds in the first year of 

expenditure, approximately $12.1 million, may make this strategy unrealistic for the City.   

 

A funding increase to $850,000 per year would increase the overall network PCI to 70 over the next 

five years.  At this funding level, the deferred maintenance backlog would nearly double however, 

increasing by $5.1 million, from $5.5 million in 2016, to $10.6 million in 2020.  This is mainly due 

to the increase in the portion of the street network that would be in a ‘Very Poor’ condition, and 

require expensive reconstruction treatments. 

 

At a $1.1 million funding level, the overall network PCI would increase to 75 over the next ten 

years.  85.9% of the street network would be in ‘Good’ condition, a vast improvement from the 

current level of 40.6% in ‘Good’ condition.  This also slows the increase in deferred maintenance, 

from $4.8 million in 2016, to $6.7 million in 2020.  Most of this increase is due to inflation.  At 

present day costs, the increase is only $250,000.  The percentage of roads in ‘Very Poor’ condition 

decreases from 10.8% currently, to 10.0% in 2025.   

 

As demonstrated in the different scenarios, the City needs to invest a significant amount of money 

on expensive rehabilitation and reconstruction projects.  This will reduce the deferred maintenance 

backlog, increase the network PCI, and allow money to be spent for less capital-intensive 

treatments such as slurry seals, crack sealing, and thin overlays in the future. 

 

The PMP Budget Needs Module is recommending $14.8 million for streets in the ‘Poor’ to ‘Very 

Poor’ condition.  Because these categories require extensive rehabilitation and reconstruction work, 

the work will consume approximately 90.4% of the planned costs, as estimated by the PMP.  This 

places the city in a challenging position of trying to avoid increasing future street rehabilitation 

costs coupled with the risk of a substantial increase in an already significant ten year shortfall 

projection. Currently, 10.8% of the street network is in ‘Very Poor’ condition.  However, this is 

likely to increase to 33.1% in ten years if current funding levels continue.  This conclusion is 

noteworthy to the City Council.  Unless funding is allocated to support an increase in the City’s 

street rehabilitation program, the City may lose the opportunity to utilize lower cost preventative 

maintenance and light overlay treatment options.   

 

The City should seek to increase funding for street maintenance One strategy may be to implement 

a local fee dedicated solely to street maintenance and rehabilitation, such as a local gas tax or 

Transportation Utility Fee.  A Transportation Utility Fee (sometimes known as a Street 

Maintenance Fee, Road User Fee, or Street Utility Fee) is a monthly fee based on use of the 

transportation system that is collected from residences and businesses within the City limits. The 

fee is based on the number of trips a particular land use generates and is collected through the City's 

regular utility bill. Adjustments can also be made for certain business types based on the nature of 

the traffic they create.  For example garbage companies may be charged a higher rate due to the 

added damage heavy garbage trucks cause to streets.  The fee is designated for use in the 

maintenance and repair of the City's transportation system. Users of the street system share the costs 



   

Capitol Asset & Pavement Services, Inc. -14- April, 2016    

of the rehabilitative and preventive maintenance needed to keep the street system operating at an 

adequate level. 

 

Preparation of a budget options report is just one step in using the MTC PMP to build an effective 

street maintenance program.  Recommendations for further steps are: 

 

 Obtain detailed subsurface information on selected sections before major rehabilitation projects 

are contracted.  Costs for large rehabilitation projects are extremely variable and estimates can 

sometimes be reduced following project-level engineering analysis.  It is possible that only a 

portion of a street recommended for reconstruction actually requires such heavy-duty repair. 

 

 Evaluate the specific treatments and costs recommended by the PMP, and modify them to 

reflect the actual repairs and unit costs that are expected to be used. 

 

 Test other budget options with varying revenues and preventive maintenance and rehabilitation 

splits. 

 

 Prepare a brief memo to City Officials outlining the recommended ten-year maintenance 

program.  The memo should include the amount of revenues available for pavement repair, a list 

of streets to be repaired, and the type of repair to be completed (listed in order of year of 

scheduled treatment), as well as any requests for specific budgetary actions. 

 

In addition to performing cyclic pavement condition inspections, unit cost information for the 

applications of various maintenance and rehabilitation treatments should be updated annually in the 

PMP ‘Decision Tree Module’.  If this data is not kept current, the City runs the risk of understating 

actual funding requirements to adequately maintain the street network.  A pavement inspection 

cycle that would allow for the inspection of arterial and collector streets every two years and 

residential streets every four to four years is recommended.  

 

The City has completed the foundation work necessary to execute a successful pavement 

management plan.  The street system is ‘Fair' condition, indicating that the City has not consistently 

applied sufficient funds to maintain their large capital investment in the street system.  At the 

current investment level, the street condition will continue to deteriorate.  To improve the condition 

of the street system and reduce the maintenance backlog, additional revenues and support from 

various decision-making bodies are required. 

 

As more ‘Good’ streets deteriorate into the ‘Poor’ and ‘Very Poor’ categories, the cost of deferred 

maintenance will continue to increase.  The cost of the deferred maintenance backlog will stop 

increasing only when enough funds are provided to prevent streets from deteriorating into a worse 

condition category, or when the whole network falls into the ‘Very Poor’ category (i.e. can not 

deteriorate any further).  At that time, the network would have to be replaced at a cost of $52.4 

million.   

 

 



   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

 

Definitions 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



   

 

 

The pavement condition index, or PCI, is a measurement of the health of the pavement network or 

condition and ranges from 0 to 100.  A newly constructed street would have a PCI of 100, while a 

failed street would have a PCI of 10 or less.  The PCI is calculated based on pavement distresses 

identified in the field. 
 

Network is defined as a complete inventory of all streets and other pavement facilities in which the 

City has jurisdiction and maintenance responsibilities. To facilitate the management of streets, they 

are subdivided into management sections identified as a segment of street, which has the same 

characteristics. 

  

Urban Arterial street system carries the major portion of trips entering and leaving the urban area, 

as well as the majority of through movements desiring to bypass the central City. In addition, 

significant intra-area-travel such as between central business districts and outlying residential areas 

exists. 

 

Urban Collector Street provides land access service and traffic circulation within residential 

neighborhoods, commercial, and industrial areas. It differs from the arterial system in that facilities 

on a collector system may penetrate residential neighborhoods. 

 

Urban Local Street system comprises all facilities not one of the higher systems.  It serves primarily 

to provide direct access to abutting land and access to the higher systems. 

 

Preventive Maintenance refers to repairs applied while the pavement is in “good” condition. Such 

repairs extend the life of the pavement at relatively low costs, and prevent the pavement from 

deteriorating into conditions requiring more expensive treatments.  Preventive maintenance 

treatments include slurry seals, crack sealing, and deep patching. Treatments of this sort are applied 

before pavement deterioration has become severe and usually cost less than $2.00/sq. yd. 
 

Deferred Maintenance refers to the dollar amount of maintenance and rehabilitation work that 

should have been completed to maintain the street in “good” condition, but had to be deferred due 

to funding deficiencies for preventative maintenance and/or pavement rehabilitation programs. The 

actual repairs that are being deferred are often referred to as a “backlog.” 
 

Stop Gap refers to the dollar amount of repairs applied to maintain the pavement in a serviceable 

condition (e.g. pothole patching). These repairs are a temporary measure to stop resident 

complaints, and do not extend the pavement life.  Stopgap repairs are directly proportional to the 

amount of deferred maintenance.   

 

Surface Types – AC is an Asphalt Concrete street that has one year’s asphalt, for example a street 

that has been newly constructed reconstructed.  In contrast AC/AC (in reports marked as O – 

AC/AC) is a street that has an overlay treatment over the original asphalt construction.  Streets 

marked as ST do not have an asphalt concrete layer, only a surface composed of layers of oil and 

rock (macadam or chip seal).  

 

‘Good’ Condition Category – Roads in ‘Good’ condition have no to little distresses found on them.  

These roads may have some minor surface weathering or small amounts of light cracking, and 

generally do not yet require any maintenance. 

 



   

 

‘Satisfactory’ Condition Category – Roads in ‘Good’ condition have no to little distresses found on 

them.  These roads may have some minor surface weathering or light cracking, but can generally be 

maintained with cost-effective preventative maintenance treatments (surface seals and crack seals). 

 

‘Fair’ Condition Category’ – Roads in ‘Fair’ condition show some form of distress caused by 

traffic load related activity or environmental distress that requires more than a life-extending 

treatment.  The MTC Streetsaver program separates these into two condition categories for the 

purposes of the analysis.  Category II – ‘non-load’ and Category III – ‘load-related’, based on 

whether a majority of the distresses found had load or environmental related causes   

 

‘Poor’ Condition Category – Roads in ‘Poor’ condition are near the end of their service lives and 

often exhibit major forms of distress such as potholes, extensive alligator cracking, and/or 

pavement depressions. 

 

‘Very Poor’ Condition Category - Roads in the ‘Very Poor’ condition category indicate that the 

road has failed.  These pavements are at the end of their service lives and have major distresses, 

often indicating the failure of the sub base 

 

Load related distress - .  Load related distresses, such as alligator cracking, rutting, and depressions 

are usually a sign of a sub-base issue, caused by repeated traffic loads. 

 

Non-load related distress - Non-load (or environmental), distresses typically have environmental 

causes related to the pavement becoming older and less elastic (brittle).  Typical non-load distresses 

are longitudinal or transverse cracking, block cracking, and surface weathering and raveling. 



City of Molalla, OR City of Molalla
Run Date: 6/30/2017



MAIN  ST

MAIN  ST

TOLIVER  RD

HW
Y 2

13 
  

HW
Y 2

13 
  

MO
LA

LLA
  AV

E

HWY 211   

HWY 211   

0 2,0001,000
Feet

¯

PCI Rating
PCI Below 70
70 - 79
80 - 100
Not Surveyed

2016 PCI Ratings for City Owned Streets



MAIN  ST

MAIN  ST

TOLIVER  RD

HW
Y 2

13 
  

HW
Y 2

13 
  

MO
LA

LLA
  AV

E

HWY 211   

HWY 211   

0 2,0001,000
Feet

¯
Street Maintenance Schedule: Year of First Planned Repair (Scenario 2)

Repair Year
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
No Repair Scheduled



MAIN  ST

MAIN  ST

TOLIVER  RD

HW
Y 2

13 
  

HW
Y 2

13 
  

MO
LA

LLA
  AV

E

HWY 211   

HWY 211   

0 2,0001,000
Feet

¯
Street Maintenance Schedule: Recommended Repair (Scenario 2)

Repair Type
Seal Cracks
Crack and Slurry Seal
Patch and Slurry Seal
Slurry Seal
2" AC Overlay
2.5" AC Overlay
Mill and Thin Overlay
Reconstruct Street



MAIN  ST

MAIN  ST

TOLIVER  RD

HW
Y 2

13 
  

HW
Y 2

13 
  

MO
LA

LLA
  AV

E

HWY 211   

HWY 211   

0 2,0001,000
Feet

¯
Scenario 2, Year 1 Repair Schedule: $5 Street Fee

Repair Type
Crack and Slurry Seal
Slurry Seal



MAIN  ST

MAIN  ST

TOLIVER  RD

HW
Y 2

13 
  

HW
Y 2

13 
  

MO
LA

LLA
  AV

E

HWY 211   

HWY 211   

0 2,0001,000
Feet

¯
Scenario 2, Year 1 Repair Schedule: $7 Street Fee

Repair Type
Crack and Slurry Seal
Patch and Slurry Seal
Slurry Seal
Reconstruct Street



MAIN  ST

MAIN  ST

TOLIVER  RD

HW
Y 2

13 
  

HW
Y 2

13 
  

MO
LA

LLA
  AV

E

HWY 211   

HWY 211   

0 2,0001,000
Feet

¯
Scenario 2, Year 1 Repair Schedule: $9 Street Fee

Repair Type
Crack and Slurry Seal
2" AC Overlay



MAIN  ST

MAIN  ST

TOLIVER  RD

HW
Y 2

13 
  

HW
Y 2

13 
  

MO
LA

LLA
  AV

E

HWY 211   

HWY 211   

0 2,0001,000
Feet

¯
Scenario 2, Year 1 Repair Schedule: $11 Street Fee

Repair Type
Seal Cracks
Crack and Slurry Seal
Patch and Slurry Seal
Slurry Seal



MAIN  ST

MAIN  ST

TOLIVER  RD

HW
Y 2

13 
  

HW
Y 2

13 
  

MO
LA

LLA
  AV

E

HWY 211   

HWY 211   

0 2,0001,000
Feet

¯
Scenario 2, Year 1 Repair Schedule: $21 Street Fee (Full Funding)

Repair Type
Seal Cracks
Crack and Slurry Seal
Patch and Slurry Seal
Slurry Seal
2" AC Overlay
2.5" AC Overlay
Reconstruct Street



 

 

Background:  

The last Wastewater System Master Plan was completed 17 years ago. This project will 

update the master plan including review of biosolids management plan, recycled water use 

plan, effluent discharge, and infiltration/inflow. Staff requested a scope of work from our on‐

call engineering company (Project Delivery Group) and their wastewater subconsultant (Dyer 

Partnership) to perform this work. Staff recommends City Council authorize the City Manager 

to execute a contract modification with PDG to work with Dyer Partnership to perform this 

work. 

 

City	Of	Molalla	
City	Council	Meeting	

 
	Agenda	Category:	New	Business	–	Contract	

Award		
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Gerald Fisher, Public Works Director   
APPROVED BY:   Dan Huff, City Manager	 	 	 																																										

Subject:  Wastewater Facilities and Infrastructure Master Plan – Contract Award 

Recommendation:   Council Approval 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:   August 09, 2017

Fiscal Impact:  Capital Projects Fund



































 

 

Background:  

Every 5 years a report for the stormwater system Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) 5 year 

plan must be submitted to DEQ listing accomplishments for the previous 5 years and planned 

improvements for the next 5 years. Staff requested a scope of work from our on‐call 

engineering company (Project Delivery Group) and their wastewater subconsultant (Dyer 

Partnership) to perform this work. Staff recommends City Council authorize the City Manager 

to execute a contract modification with PDG to work with Dyer Partnership to perform this 

work. 

 

 
 

City	Of	Molalla	
City	Council	Meeting	

 
	Agenda	Category:	New	Business	–	Contract	

Award		
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject:  TMDL Implementation Plan Review & Update – Contract Award 

Recommendation:   Council Approval 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:   August 09, 2017

Fiscal Impact:  Sewer Fund 



 

 

SUBMITTED BY:  Gerald Fisher, Public Works Director   
APPROVED BY:   Dan Huff, City Manager	 	 	 																																										



 
City of Molalla 1 
Five Year Plan Review and Implementation Plan Update 
Scope of Engineering Services 

CITY OF MOLALLA 
TMDL IMPLEMENTATION PLAN  

FIVE YEAR PLAN REVIEW & IMPLEMENTATION PLAN UPDATE 
SCOPE OF ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) established a Total Maximum Daily Load 
(TMDL) for the Willamette Basin in an order signed on September 21, 2006. The TMDL requires 
designated agencies and municipalities to implement actions to improve water quality.  
 
The TMDL requires Designated Management Agencies (DMAs), including the City of Molalla, to 
implement the TMDL through both National Pollutant Discharge and Elimination System (NPDES) 
permitted and non-permitted programs.  Each DMA is required to prepare an individualized 
Implementation Plan that provides a description of the management strategies necessary to prevent, 
control, and/or treat specific sources of the TMDL pollutants.  Periodic reviews and revisions of the 
Implementation Plan are also required. 
 
The City of Molalla created, and submitted to DEQ, a modified Implementation plan in December, 2011.  
A five year review of this Implementation Plan must be completed and submitted to DEQ by October 20, 
2017 and an updated Implementation Plan must be completed and submitted to DEQ by January 15, 
2018.   
 
The five year review will be completed in accordance with the DEQ Molalla-Pudding Subbasin DMA 5th 
Year Review Report Guidance Template and the Implementation Plan Update will be completed per the 
TMDL Implementation Guidance prepared by DEQ.  The work tasks itemized below describe the major 
tasks required for both the five year review and Implementation Plan Update.   
 
Task 1 – Kick-off Meeting 
 
A Project Kick-off Meeting will be held so the responsibilities of each party during the progress of the 
project will be established. The criteria and source of all information required to complete the 
Implementation Plan review and the Implementation Plan Update will be discussed and agreed to.  The 
work tasks will also be reviewed modified if required, and agreed upon. 
 
Task 2 – Existing Implementation Plan Review 
 
Under this task, the 2011 Implementation Plan will be reviewed and discussed with the City in order to 
establish what TMDL implementation measures discussed in the implementation tracking matrices have 
been addressed or completed.  Progress for each strategy will be documented and the approach, timeline 
and budgetary costs for each will be updated. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
City of Molalla 2 
Five Year Plan Review and Implementation Plan Update 
Scope of Engineering Services 

Task 3 – Complete 5th Year Review Guidance Template – Draft 
 
This task will include the completion and draft submittal to DEQ of the 5Th Year Review Guidance 
Template covering the 2011 Molalla TMDL Implementation Plan.  The completed template will include 
the work and background information on the following: 
 

1. TMDL geographic and demographic information 
2. TMDL annual reporting and implementation information 
3. TMDL tracking matrix update  
4. Discussion on successful plan elements 
5. Discussion on impediments to the existing plan 
6. Discussion on the effectiveness of public participation and involvement 
7. Discussion on effective implementation and proposed solutions to overcome previous 

impediments 
8. Discussion on plan for future annual reporting 

 
Task 4 – Complete 5th Year Review Guidance Template - Final 
 
This task will include the coordination with DEQ and revisions based on their review of the 5th Year 
Review draft.  A final draft will be completed and provided to the City for certification and submittal to 
DEQ. 
 
Task 5 – Collect Basin/Subbasin Background Information 
 
The existing Implementation Plan did not contain the necessary plan aspects as required by DEQ.  
Therefore, this and the following tasks will provide a more detailed look at the City’s TMDL 
requirements and implementation strategies, as required for Implementation Plans. 
 
Task 5 will include compiling and documenting background information about TMDL requirements and 
pollutant parameters for the Willamette Basin, specifically the Molalla-Pudding subbasin.   
  
This will include a review of the Water Quality Management Plan for the Willamette Basin and Oregon 
Administrative Rule (OAR) 340-042 and how they relate specifically to the City of Molalla and the 
Molalla-Pudding subbasin.   
 
Task 6 – Study Area Characteristics  
 
For this Task, background information required for the Implementation Plan will be documented and 
verified from past work. Information on the Study Area to be assembled includes general physical 
descriptions, municipal system infrastructure, environmental documentation, municipal code, and City 
planning elements.  Relevant storm drain system and waste water discharge information will be detailed 
and include the following: 
 

1. Location in the watershed 
2. Watershed characteristics 
3. Strom and waste water infrastructure and discharge locations 
4. Relevant Municipal Code/Comprehensive Plan elements  
5. NPDES Permit discharge requirements 

 



 
City of Molalla 3 
Five Year Plan Review and Implementation Plan Update 
Scope of Engineering Services 

Task 7 – Water Quality Efforts 
 
Under this task, the management strategies (Task 2) that the City previously identified and has 
implemented will be as discussed and detailed.  Other water quality efforts, not previously reported, will 
also be reviewed and covered in this section of the Implementation Plan Update.   Timelines and cost 
implications will be updated and included in this section as well. 
 
Task 8 – Implementation Strategies & Matrix 
 
The emphasis of this task is to update and revise, as necessary, the City’s implementation management 
strategies.  Those efforts that have been completed or are in progress will be noted (Task 7) and existing 
and new strategies will be revised and included in the Implementation Plan Update.  The implementation 
management strategies will focus on reducing contributions of heat, bacteria, mercury and toxins to 
surface waters within the City’s jurisdiction.  Timelines for implementing management strategies and a 
schedule for completing measurable milestones will be incorporated. 
 
Task 9 – Monitoring, Reporting and Compliance 
 
Under this task, the Implementation Plan will outline the requirements for monitoring and reporting on 
the progress made toward implementing management strategies.  This section will also detail the steps 
necessary for future reviews, evaluations and updates of the Implementation Plan. 
 
Task 10 - Draft and Final Report 
 
The information generated in the tasks above will be assembled into a Draft of the Implementation Plan 
Update and presented to the City for review. The Draft will also be submitted to DEQ for review and 
comment.    
 
Comments from the review of the Draft, as well as any required modifications, will be incorporated into 
a Final document. Drawings, graphs and charts will be finalized. Copies of the Final Implementation Plan 
will be prepared and submitted to the City and DEQ. 
 
Task 11 – Meetings 
 
We cannot overemphasize the importance of having good communication with the City Council, City 
staff, and the public to ensure that the Implementation Plan review and update are developed in the best 
interests and support of the community.  Much of the required information pertaining to water quality 
management strategies (existing and proposed) will come from City staff; therefore a good 
communication base will need to be established.    
 
We plan to meet with City staff and the City Council, as needed and requested, to facilitate the 
development of the Implementation Plan and inform the City on the findings and progress of the work.  
The meetings with staff are likely to be informal; updates or presentations for the Council will likely be 
made at the monthly Council meetings, unless otherwise requested.   
 
Coordination between the City and DEQ will also be required throughout the duration of the study.  A 
meeting with City staff and DEQ is anticipated following DEQ’s review of the Draft Implementation 
Plan Update.   
 



 
City of Molalla 4 
Five Year Plan Review and Implementation Plan Update 
Scope of Engineering Services 

 
WORK PRODUCT:   
 
Five hardbound copies and one electronic copy, in Word format, on CD of the TMDL Implementation 
Plan Update will be delivered to the City after final Department of Environmental Quality approval. 
 
START DATE:    July 1, 2017 
 
DRAFT COMPLETION DATE:  5th Year Implementation Plan Review – September 20, 2017 
      TMDL Implementation Plan Update – December 15, 2017 
 
FINAL COMPLETION DATE:  5th Year Implementation Plan Review – October 20, 2017 
      TMDL Implementation Plan Update – January 15, 2018 
 
 
CONTRACTOR’S CONSIDERATION: $40,700 per attached Estimate of Man Hours and Costs. 
 
PAYMENT METHOD:   Monthly progress payments based on work completed. 



  ESTIMATE OF MAN HOURS AND COSTS
 

   DATE: 06-12-17 PROJECT: TMDL Implemenation Plan Phase 1: 5th Year Plan Review

MAN HOURS
PRINC. PROJ PROJ ENG CAD

TASK MGR MNGR ENGR TECH DRAFT CLERICAL
      1: Kick-off Meeting 4 4
      2: Existing Implementation Plan Review 2 16
      3: Review Guidance Template (draft) 2 16
      4: Review Guidance Template (final) 2 4 2
     11: Meetings 6

TOTAL ESTIMATED HOURS 10 46 0 0 0 0 0 2

UNIT TOTAL
MATERIAL COSTS DESCRIPTION OR UNIT  QUANTITY COST COST

   REPORT 0.00
   PHOTOGRAPHS 0.00
   COST ESTIMATE 0.00
   PLANS AND PRINTS 0.00
   SPECIFICATIONS 0.00
   OTHER  0.00

0.00
0.00

TOTAL MATERIAL COSTS---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $0.00

TOTAL
TRAVEL AND PER DIEM    DETAIL COST

   MILEAGE 373 $0.54 199.56
   COMMERCIAL
   PER DIEM 0.00
   LOCAL TRANSPORTATION
   LODGING   0.00

TOTAL TRAVEL AND PER DIEM---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $200

TOTAL
OTHER SIGNIFICANT COSTS    DETAIL COST

   SHIPPING
   REPRODUCTION
   OTHER

TOTAL OTHER SIGNIFICANT COSTS---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $0

      PREPARED BY: RHQ



  ESTIMATE OF MAN HOURS AND COSTS
 

   DATE: 06-12-17 PROJECT: TMDL Implemenation Plan Phase 2: Implementation Plan Update

MAN HOURS
PRINC. PROJ PROJ ENG CAD

TASK MGR MGR ENGR TECH DRAFT CLERICAL
      1: Kick-off Meeting 4 4
      5: Collect Basin/Subbasin Background Info 4 28
      6: Study Area Characteristics 4 40 8
      7: Water Quality Efforts 4 42
      8: Implementation Strategies & Matrix 4 42
      9: Monitoring, Reporting & Compliance 12
     10: Draft & Final Report 4 28 12 8
     11: Meetings 16

TOTAL ESTIMATED HOURS 24 212 0 0 20 0 0 8

UNIT TOTAL
MATERIAL COSTS DESCRIPTION OR UNIT  QUANTITY COST COST

   REPORT Copies 5.00 $50.00 250.00
   PHOTOGRAPHS 0.00
   COST ESTIMATE 0.00
   PLANS AND PRINTS 0.00
   SPECIFICATIONS 0.00
   OTHER 0.00

0.00
0.00

TOTAL MATERIAL COSTS---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $250.00

TOTAL
TRAVEL AND PER DIEM    DETAIL COST

   MILEAGE 576 $0.54 308.16
   COMMERCIAL
   PER DIEM 0.00
   LOCAL TRANSPORTATION
   LODGING

TOTAL TRAVEL AND PER DIEM---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $308

TOTAL
OTHER SIGNIFICANT COSTS    DETAIL NUMBER COST COST

PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND REVIEW PROJECT DELIVERY GROUP 1 $1,500 1,500.00

 

TOTAL OTHER SIGNIFICANT COSTS---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $1,500

      PREPARED BY: RHQ



    SUMMARY
 

      BREAKDOWN OF PROPOSED FEE
 

   DATE: 06-12-17 PROJECT: TMDL Implemenation Plan

LABOR PROJECT
RATE       ----- -1- -----       ----- -2- -----
  $/HR.      HRS.  AMOUNT      HRS.  AMOUNT

   DIRECT LABOR COSTS:
PRINCIPLE MANAGER---------- $135 10 $1,350 24 $3,240
PROJECT MANAGER $125 46 $5,750 212 $26,500
PROJECT ENGINEER $115 0 $0 0 $0
ENGINEER TECH $95 0 $0 0 $0
CAD/DRAFTER $80 0 $0 20 $1,600
OFFICE MANAGER $49 0 $0 0 $0
CLERICAL $45 0 $0 0 $0

      TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS: $7,100 $31,338

DIRECT PROJECT EXPENSES
   A. MATERIAL COSTS (BREAKDOWN ATTACHED) $0 $250
   B. TRAVEL & PER DIEM (BREAKDOWN ATTACHED) $200 $308
   C. OTHER SIGNIFICANT COSTS (BREAKDN ATTACHED) $0 $1,500
   D. ADMINISTRATIVE FEE 10 % OF A,B,&C $0 $0
       TOTAL OF: A THROUGH D $200 $2,058

 TOTAL FEE (PER PHASE): $7,300 $33,396

 

      1: 5th Year Plan Review $7,300
      2: Implementation Plan Update $33,396

---------------
TOTAL FEES $40,700

     PREPARED BY: RHQ



 

 

Background:  

This project will rebuild and replace worn parts, chain, and other mechanisms on the WWTP 

headworks screen. This is the only screen installed as part of the last WWTP upgrade and 

failure of this unit would have a significant impact on the treatment plants. Because this is a 

sole source manufacturer, Enviro-Care Company is the only authorized group to work on this 

piece of machinery and warrantee the work. This project was budgeted as part of FY 17-18 

and once the rebuild is completed the City will begin design and construction of a second 

headworks screen. 

 

 
 

City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: New Business – Contract 

Award  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Gerald Fisher, Public Works Director   
APPROVED BY:  Dan Huff, City Manager                                             

Subject:  WWTP Headworks Rebuild – Contract Award 

 

 
Recommendation:   Council Approval 

 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:   August 09, 2017 

Fiscal Impact:  Capital Projects Fund 



INVOICE

8/4/17UPS Ground

Ship to:

Voice: 815.636.8306

Fax: 815.636.8302

Invoice Number: PART17066fsm-PL

Invoice Date: Aug 4, 2017

Page:

Bill To:

CITY of MOLALLA, OR  WWTP
PO BOX 248
Molalla, OR 97038
USA

Molalla WWTP
12424 S. Toliver Rd
Molalla, OR 97038

Customer ID Customer PO Payment Terms

Shipping Method Ship Date

9/3/17

Due DateSales Rep ID

MOLALLA, OR JASON CLIFFORD Net 30 Days

1

Duplicate

TREATMENT EQUIPMENT

Quantity Item Description Remaining Items Unit Price Amount

1.00 REBUILD PACKAGE FOR FRS 1000/75x6

2.00 FSMP-102273 Bottom sprocket 1.4122 (FRS) 700.00 1,400.00

2.00 FSMP-102287 Bearing Journal 106,5mm 1.4301, for FRSII 262.00 524.00

unit

8.00 FSMP-100420 Hex Head Screw, M12 x 25mm, V2A, FSM 1.00 8.00

p/n 100420

8.00 FSMP-100052 Lock Washer, M12, V2A, FSM p/n 100052 0.20 1.60

2.00 FSMP-103252 O Ring, lower sprocket on FRS 10.70 21.40

2.00 FSMP-100937 V-Ring. lower sprocket on FRS 12.45 24.90

2.00 FSMP-100870 Cover for bottom sprocket assy, FRS 110.00 220.00

6.00 FSMP-100066 Lock Washer, M8, V2A, FSM p/n 100066 0.15 0.90

6.00 FSMP-100600 Hex Head Screw, M8 x 30mm, V2A, FSM 0.50 3.00

p/n 100600

2.00 FSMP-100844 Snap Ring, lower sprocket on FRS, D-50 VA 12.45 24.90

2.00 FSMP-104849 Straight screwed coupling GE10-PLR-1/4" 12.45 24.90

2.00 FSMP-102260 Top sprocket disc (2 pc) D-60 a 80 900.00 1,800.00

10.00 FSMP-100029 Flat Washer, M16, V2A, FSM p/n 100029 0.35 3.50

10.00 FSMP-102031 Bolt, special M16x45, V2A 20.00 200.00

10.00 FSMP-100680 Nut, self locking M16, V2A, FSM p/n 100680 0.85 8.50

2.00 FSMP-102264 Hub for the sprocket diameter 60 1.4301 450.00 900.00

(FRS)

Sales Tax

Freight Continued

Continued

Continued

Payment/Credit Applied

Total Invoice Amount

A 1.5% Monthly Late Fee will apply to pmts rec'd more than 30 days after shipm.

TOTAL

Continued

Check/Credit Memo No:

Subtotal Continued

ENVIRO-CARE COMPANY
1570 ST. PAUL AVE.
GURNEE, IL 60031
USA



INVOICE

8/4/17UPS Ground

Ship to:

Voice: 815.636.8306

Fax: 815.636.8302

Invoice Number: PART17066fsm-PL

Invoice Date: Aug 4, 2017

Page:

Bill To:

CITY of MOLALLA, OR  WWTP
PO BOX 248
Molalla, OR 97038
USA

Molalla WWTP
12424 S. Toliver Rd
Molalla, OR 97038

Customer ID Customer PO Payment Terms

Shipping Method Ship Date

9/3/17

Due DateSales Rep ID

MOLALLA, OR JASON CLIFFORD Net 30 Days

2

Duplicate

TREATMENT EQUIPMENT

Quantity Item Description Remaining Items Unit Price Amount

2.00 FSMP-101401 Tension set adjustment assy, Dia. 60 (FRS) 132.00 264.00

2.00 FSMP-102317 Tension adjustment assy with bearing, Dia 60 240.00 480.00

4.00 FSMP-105075 Rubber sealing plate 60 for bearing (FRS) 10.60 42.40

1.00 FSMP-109233 Drive shaft for FRS. SA 87 RB=1000 590.00 590.00

16.00 FSM-FRS Chain 16m Chain for FRS - 16m length (304) 166.00 2,656.00

2.00 FSMP-102188 Masterlink cranked without bolt and ring, 80.00 160.00

FRS, 1.430/1.4057

4.00 FSMP-104924 Bolt 1.4057 (chain) FRS 30.00 120.00

8.00 FSMP-102198 Ring 1.4571 (chain) 5.30 42.40

164.00 FSMP-100675 Self Locking Nut, M10, V2A, FSM p/n 100675 0.35 57.40

164.00 FSMP-100050 Spring lock washer, b10 V2A 0.15 24.60

82.00 FSMP-100185 Sockethead Cap Bolt M10 x 30mm, V2A, 0.50 41.00

FSM p/n 100185

82.00 FSMP-100187 Sockethead Cap Bolt M10 x 35mm, V2A, 0.60 49.20

FSM p/n 100187

82.00 FSMP-102320 Plastic disc spacer 014 0.60 49.20

4.00 FSMP-104393 Brush shaft flange rotating asssembly - with 72.00 288.00

grease nipple

4.00 FSMP-100932 V-Ring 40-S 3.00 12.00

4.00 FSMP-103450 Plastic disk 0 40 1.50 6.00

1.00 FSMP-105210 Curve plastic sealing foe screen, left 67.00 67.00

Sales Tax

Freight Continued

Continued

Continued

Payment/Credit Applied

Total Invoice Amount

A 1.5% Monthly Late Fee will apply to pmts rec'd more than 30 days after shipm.

TOTAL

Continued

Check/Credit Memo No:

Subtotal Continued

ENVIRO-CARE COMPANY
1570 ST. PAUL AVE.
GURNEE, IL 60031
USA



INVOICE

8/4/17UPS Ground

Ship to:

Voice: 815.636.8306

Fax: 815.636.8302

Invoice Number: PART17066fsm-PL

Invoice Date: Aug 4, 2017

Page:

Bill To:

CITY of MOLALLA, OR  WWTP
PO BOX 248
Molalla, OR 97038
USA

Molalla WWTP
12424 S. Toliver Rd
Molalla, OR 97038

Customer ID Customer PO Payment Terms

Shipping Method Ship Date

9/3/17

Due DateSales Rep ID

MOLALLA, OR JASON CLIFFORD Net 30 Days

3

Duplicate

TREATMENT EQUIPMENT

Quantity Item Description Remaining Items Unit Price Amount

1.00 FSMP-105211 Curve plastic sealing for screens, right 67.00 67.00

8.00 FSMP-100183 Countersunk head screw with hexagon 0.50 4.00

socket, M10x25 V2A

1.00 Assy FRS 1000 Rbbr P Bottom Rubber Plate for FRS, 1000mm 93.00 93.00

1.00 Assy FSM FRS 1000 Buttom brush for FRS, 1000mm 94.00 94.00

6.00 FSMP-109934 Side plastic sealing 900 70.00 420.00

2.00 FSMP-107967 Side plastic sealing 800 62.00 124.00

36.00 FSMP-100617 Hex Head Screw, M8 x 70mm, V2A, FSM 1.35 48.60

p/n 100617

36.00 FSMP-100266 Large Diameter Washer, M8, OD 23.6mm, 0.25 9.00

V2A, FSM p/n 100266

36.00 FSMP-100066 Lock Washer, M8, V2A, FSM p/n 100066 0.20 7.20

36.00 FSMP-100343 Grub Screw, M8, V2A, FSM p/n 100343 0.40 14.40

10.00 FSMP-102438 Round Brush system 2 S(STD) 98.00 980.00

10.00 FSMP-102440 Additional brush over the top sprocket, FRS 23.00 230.00

10.00 FSMP-107708 Chain support 900 40.00 400.00

4.00 fsmp-112643 Chain support 400 23.40 93.60

60.00 FSMP-100233 Flat head screw, V2A 0.30 18.00

5.00 Service person on site. NTE$1300 per day 1,300.00 6,500.00

5.00 Hotel, car, meals.  NTE $250 per day 250.00 1,250.00

1.00 Round trip airfare NTE $600 600.00 600.00

Sales Tax

Freight Continued

Continued

Continued

Payment/Credit Applied

Total Invoice Amount

A 1.5% Monthly Late Fee will apply to pmts rec'd more than 30 days after shipm.

TOTAL

Continued

Check/Credit Memo No:

Subtotal Continued

ENVIRO-CARE COMPANY
1570 ST. PAUL AVE.
GURNEE, IL 60031
USA



INVOICE

8/4/17UPS Ground

Ship to:

Voice: 815.636.8306

Fax: 815.636.8302

Invoice Number: PART17066fsm-PL

Invoice Date: Aug 4, 2017

Page:

Bill To:

CITY of MOLALLA, OR  WWTP
PO BOX 248
Molalla, OR 97038
USA

Molalla WWTP
12424 S. Toliver Rd
Molalla, OR 97038

Customer ID Customer PO Payment Terms

Shipping Method Ship Date

9/3/17

Due DateSales Rep ID

MOLALLA, OR JASON CLIFFORD Net 30 Days

4

Duplicate

TREATMENT EQUIPMENT

Quantity Item Description Remaining Items Unit Price Amount

Sales Tax

Freight 347.85

21,415.45

21,415.45

Payment/Credit Applied

Total Invoice Amount

A 1.5% Monthly Late Fee will apply to pmts rec'd more than 30 days after shipm.

TOTAL

Check/Credit Memo No:

Subtotal 21,067.60

ENVIRO-CARE COMPANY
1570 ST. PAUL AVE.
GURNEE, IL 60031
USA



 

CITY OF MOLALLA 
 

RESOLUTION 2017-11 
 

A RESOLUTION INITIATING STREET VACATION PROCEEDINGS  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Molalla desires to initiate street vacation proceedings for all or a 
portion of  a public right of way located with the city limits and being a portion Shirley Street as 
described on Exhibit A attached to this Resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized to initiate street vacation proceedings pursuant to 
ORS 271.110 upon action by the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to set a time and place for a public hearing to be held on 
the proposed street vacation on August 23, 2017; and  
 
WHEREAS, public notice of such public hearing is required to be given in accordance with the 
provisions of ORS 271.080. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Molalla, Oregon, 
as follows: 
 

1. That proceedings for vacation of all or a portion of the streets described on Exhibit A 
attached hereto are hereby initiated by the City Council in accordance with the 
procedures and requirements of Chapter 271.110 of Oregon Revised Statutes. 

 
2. That a public hearing be scheduled on August 23, 2017 at 7:00PM to invite public 

comment and testimony before the City Council regarding said proposed street 
vacation, and that notice of said public hearing be given substantially in the form set 
forth on Exhibit B to this Resolution. 

 
Passed by the City Council of the City of Molalla, Oregon this 9th day of August, 2017, by the 
following vote: Aye:_______________Nay:______________Abstain_______                                
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
      Jimmy Thompson, Mayor 
 

      ATTEST: 
 

                                                              By: ______________________________ 
                                                         Sadie Cramer, City Recorder 

      
 
 





NOTICE OF PROPOSED STREET VACATION 
www.cityofMolalla.com 

 
 
       NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that at 7:00 p.m. on the 23rd day of August, 2017, at 
the Molalla Adult Center, 315 Kennel Ave, in the City of Molalla, Oregon, there shall be 
a public hearing before the City Council of said city on the question of the vacation of 
unimproved portions of public right-of-ways on Shirley Street.  A complete legal 
description depicting the streets to be vacated are available from the City Recorder. 
 
       Any objection or remonstrance made in writing and filed with the City Recorder will 
be accepted up to and during the public hearing.  This vacation proceeding was initiated 
by Resolution of the City Council on August 9, 2017. (Resolution 2017-11) 
 
Sadie Cramer 
City Recorder, City of Molalla 
 
 
Molalla Pioneer Publish Dates:  August 16, 2017 and August 23, 2017 
Public Posting Dates on Street:  August 10 - 23, 2017. 

 


	Agenda 080917
	Minutes 072617.proof
	Molalla Library Board-6-15-2017
	New Business - 2017 Utilities Rate Study
	20170802 2017 Utilites Rate Study Final Report
	New Business - Street Maintenance Utility Fee Options
	20170804 Street Maintenance Utility Fee Options
	Street Fee Maps COMBINED.pdf
	Existing Conditions
	Scenario 2 Repair Schedule 
	Scenario 2 Repair Type
	$21 Street Fee
	$11 Street Fee
	$9 Street Fee
	$7 Street Fee
	$5 Street Fee


	New Business - WWMP Award
	Facilities Plan Scope of Work - Final
	New Business - TMDL Plan Award
	TMDL Scope of Work - Final
	TMDL Draft Scope of Work
	SCOPE OF SERVICES
	Task 11 – Meetings

	TMDL Draft Fee Schedule
	MASTERHR


	Vacate Resolution - Step 1 before notices are published
	Vacate - Exhibit A for Shirley Street Scanned 080417
	Vacate - Public Notice for Paper Shriley Street Vacate 2017

